NOTICE OF COMMITTEE MEETING

COMMITTEE: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

PLACE:

DATE:

COUNTY BOARD ROOM — SECOND FLOOR, ONEIDA COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ZOOM CALL-IN OPTION - 1-312-626-6799
Meeting ID: 851 5017 0309 Password: 907378

** |f you are having difficulties with zoom please call the County Clerk’s Office at 715-369-6125. Zoom

is being offered as a convenience for this meeting. If zoom functionality drops, the meeting will
continue in-person at the location listed above.

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2025 TIME: 8:30 AM

The Executive Committee consists of a quorum of County Board Supervisors that also sit on the County Facilities Committee and Public Safety
Committee, however, those committees will not take any formal action at this meeting. It is possible that a quorum of county board members will be at
this meeting to gather information about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. This constitutes a meeting of the County Board

pursuant t
Board will
although t

AGEND
1.

2.

3.

4.

o State ex rel Badke v. Greendale Village Board, Wis 2d 553, 494 n.w.2d 408 (1993), and must be noticed as such, although the County
not take any formal actions at this meeting. It is also possible that there may be quorums of other County Board Committees present,
hose committees will not take any formal action at this meeting.

ALL AGENDA ITEMS ASSUMED TO BE DISCUSSION/DECISION ITEMS
A:
Call to order and Chairperson’s announcements.

Approve agenda for todays meeting (order of agenda items at Chairperson’s discretion).

Approve minutes of |October 6] |October 7| |October 8 |and October 22

Public comment

Resolution to Update Oneida County Code, Chapter 1, County Treasurer, Auditor/Finance Director, Investment
Policy and Chapter 3, Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, Financial Policies and Procedures.

Resolution to Update Oneida County Code, Chapter 3, Accounts Receivable

~

Draft Internal Control Narrative Fund Balance / Continuing Appropriations |

8.

Resolution to Amend County Board Supervisory District Lines — Town of Crescent to City of Rhinelander

9. |

Resolution to Amend County Board Supervisory District Lines — Town of Pelican to City of Rhinelander |

10/

Resolution to Amend County Board Supervisory District Lines — Town of Pine Lake to City of Rhinelander |

11.

12.

Closed Session - It is anticipated that a motion will be made, seconded, and approved by roll call vote to enter
into closed session pursuant to Section 19.85(1) (c), Wisconsin Stats., “considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which this body has jurisdiction or
responsibility” (Topic: Judicial Assistant Compensation) and pursuant to Section 19.85(10 (g) “conferring with
legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted
by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved” (Topic: Notice of Circumstances
of Claim filed by Consolidated Management Company d/b/a Consolidated Correctional Foodservice). A roll call
vote will be taken to go into closed session and it is anticipated that the Committee will return to open session by
roll call vote to consider the remainder of the meeting agenda.

Announcement of action taken in closed session, or take action based on closed session (NOTE: If the
announcement of action taken in closed session would compromise the need for the closed session, the action
taken will not be announced. Any action taken in closed session may be announced when the need for the closed
session has passed).

13.

Resolution to deny the Notice of Circumstances of Claim filed by Consolidated Management Company d/b/a
Consolidated Correctional Foodservice.

14.
15.
16.

Public comment
Dates and items for future agenda/meetings
Adjourn



Notice of Posting Time 4:30 p.m. Date: 10/31/2025
Billy Fried, Chair Notice posted by: Tracy Hartman, County Clerk
Notice posted by chief presiding officer or his/her designee. Additional information on a specific agenda item may be obtained by contacting the person who posted this notice at 715-369-6125.

Place: Courthouse Bulletin Board

News Media Notified via Mail/Fax/Email: Time 4:30 p.m. Date: 10/31/2025
Northwoods River News The Lakeland Times North Star Journal WPEG
WJFW TV Channel 12 NRG Media WYCE Radio Sunlight Report

WRJO Radio Tomahawk Leader WXPR Radio

Notice is hereby further given that pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act reasonable accommodations will be provided for qualified individuals with disabilities upon

request. Please call Tracy Hartman at (715) 369-6125 with specific information on your request allowing adequate time to respond to your request.

See reverse side of this notice for compliance checklist with the Wisconsin Open Meeting Law.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

1. Must be held in a location which is reasonably
accessible to the public.

2. Must be open to all members of the public unless
the law specifically provides otherwise.

NOTICE REQUIREMENTS:

1. In addition to any requirements set forth below,
notice must also be in compliance with any other
specific statute.

2. Chief presiding officer or his/her designee must
give notice to the official newspaper and to any
members of the news media likely to give notice to the
public.

MANNER OF NOTICE:

Date, time, place and subject matter, including
subject matter to be considered in a closed
session, must be provided in a manner and form
reasonably likely to apprise members of the
public and news media.

TIME FOR NOTICE:

1. Normally, a minimum of 24 hours prior to the
commencement of the meeting.

2. No less than 2 hours prior to the meeting if the
presiding officer establishes there is good cause that
such notice is impossible or impractical.

3. Separate notice for each meeting of the
governmental body must be given.

EXEMPTIONS FOR COMMITTEES &
SUBUNITS

Leqally constituted sub-units of a parent
governmental body may conduct a meeting
during the recess or immediately after the lawful
setting to act or deliberate upon the subject
which was the subject of the meeting. provided
the presiding officer publicly announces the time
place and subject matter of the sub-unit meeting
in advance of the meeting of the parent
governmental body.

PROCEDURE FOR GOING INTO CLOSED
SESSION:

1 Motion must be made, seconded and

carried by roll call majority vote and recorded in
the minutes.

2. If motion is carried, chief presiding officer must
advise those attending the meeting of the nature of the

business to be conducted in the closed session, and the
specific statutory exemption under which the closed
session is authorized.

SYNOPSIS OF STATUTORY EXEMPTIONS
UNDER WHICH CLOSED SESSIONS ARE
PERMITTED:

1 Concerning a case which was the subject of a
Judicial or quasi-judicial trial before this governmental
body Sec. 19.85(1)(a)

2. Considering dismissal, demotion or discipline
of any public employee or the investigation of charges
against such person and the taking of formal action on
any such matter; provided that the person is given
actual notice of any evidentiary hearing which may be
held prior to final action being taken and of any
meeting at which final action is taken. The person
under consideration must be advised of his/her right
that the evidentiary hearing be held in open session and
the notice of the meeting must state the same. Sec.
19.85(1)(b).

3. Considering employment, promotion
compensation or performance evaluation data
of any public employee over which this body has
jurisdiction or responsibility. Sec.19.85(1)(c).

4. Considering strategy for crime detection or
prevention. Sec. 19.85(1)(d).

5. Deliberating or negotiating the purchase of
public properties, the investing of public funds, or
conducting other specified public business whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed
session. Sec. 19.85(1)(e).

6. Considering financial, medical, social or
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific
person, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems or the investigation of specific charges,
which, if discussed in public, would likely have a
substantial adverse effect on the reputation of the
person referred to in such data. Sec.19.85(1)(f), except
where paragraph 2 applies.

7. Conferring with legal counsel concerning
strategy to be adopted by the governmental body with
respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become
involved. Sec. 19.85(1)(g).

8. Considering a request for advice from any
applicable ethics board. Sec. 19.85(1)(h).

PLEASE REFER TO CURRENT STATUTE
SECTION 19.85 FOR FULL TEXT

CLOSED SESSION RESTRICTIONS:

1. Must convene in open session before going into
closed session.

2. May not convene in open session, then convene
in closed session and thereafter reconvene in open
session within twelve hours unless proper notice of this
sequence was given at the same time and in the same
manner as the original open meeting.

3. Final approval or ratification of a collective
bargaining agreement may not be given in closed
session.

4. No business may be taken up at any closed
session except that which relates to matters contained
in the chief presiding officer's announcement of the
closed session.

5. In order for a meeting to be closed under
Section 19.85(1)(f) at least one committee member
would have to have actual knowledge of information
which he or she reasonably believes would be likely to
have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation
involved and there must be a probability that such
information would be divulged. Thereafter, only that
portion of the meeting where such information would
be discussed can be closed. The balance of that agenda
item must be held in open session.

BALLOTS, VOTES AND RECORDS:

1 Secret ballot is not permitted except for
the election of officers of the body or unless

otherwise permitted by specific statutes.

2. Except as permitted above, any member may
require that the vote of each member be ascertained and
recorded.

3. Motions and roll call votes must be preserved in
the record and be available for public inspection.

USE OF RECORDING EQUIPMENT:

The meeting may be recorded, filmed, or photographed,
provided that it does not interfere with the conduct of
the meeting or the rights of the participants.

LEGAL INTERPRETATION:

1. The Wisconsin Attorney General will give
advice concerning the applicability or clarification of
the Open Meeting Law upon request.

2. The municipal attorney will give advice
concerning the applicability or clarification of the Open
Meeting Law upon request.

PENALTY:

Upon conviction, any member of a governmental body
who knowingly attends a meeting held in violation of
Subchapter 1V, Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes, or who
otherwise violates the said law shall be subject to
forfeiture of not less than $25.00 nor more than $300.00
for each violation.

Prepared by Oneida County Corporation Counsel
Office - 5/16/96



Agenda

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
OCTOBER 6, 2025
MINUTES

YEAR 2026 BUDGET HEARINGS
The Executive Committee will meet to consider budget requests and review the overall year 2026 Oneida County Budget.

Committee members present: Chairman Billy Fried; Robb Jensen; Diana Harris; Steven Schreier;
Russ Fisher; Scott Holewinski; Connor Showalter
Student Representative: Parker Lee

Call to order: Chairman Fried called the meeting to order at 8:34 a.m. in the County Board Room of
the Oneida County Courthouse. The meeting has been properly posted and mailed in accordance
with the Wisconsin Open Meeting law and the facility is handicap accessible.

Approve Agenda:
Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve today’s Agenda with the order of items at the Chair's
discretion. All “Aye”; 1 Student Aye; Motion carried.

Approve Minutes from September 10, 2025:
Motion/Second: Jensen/Fisher to approve the Minutes of the September 10, 2025 meeting. All
“‘Aye”; 1 Student Aye; Motion passes.

Public comment: None

2026 Budget Hearings: Fried gave an overview of the budget hearing and how the next few days
will proceed.

2026 Budget Executive Overview: Smigielski explained that the departmental requests are listed
on the website and are available for viewing. Smigielski went over the process for departments.
Smigielski stated that the recommendations from these meetings will be forwarded to the County
Board meeting in November. Smigielski noted that with revenues and expenses there is a $4.5
Million dollar deficit that is proposed. Smigielski explained that there are four criteria that need to be
determined; does the funding request serve essential county goals and objectives, were best efforts
made to mitigate increased spending, are full use of non-levy resources able to support operations,
have creative measures been applied or considered. Discussion regarding the deficit and discussion
regarding the CIP’s. Holewinski stated that the continuing appropriations need to be discussed and
how they can be used within the budget, explaining that there is a lot of funding sitting there.
Smigielski went over the continuing appropriations and presented what is restricted funds. Smigielski
went over levy limits.

Public Health — Linda Conlon Director of the Health Department did an overview of the Health
Departments proposed budget. Fried noted the request is higher than in the past. Conlon reported
that tax levy covers eight of the twenty-four positions in the department. Conlon noted that the
remaining positions are covered with grant dollars and revenue. Conlon stated that the increase
represents the COLA increase for those eight positions in addition to rent they were asked to pay.



Agenda

Holewinski questioned the total amount for tax levy requested by the department. Smigielski reported
that $741,000 is the request for tax levy from the Health Department for next year. Discussion
regarding billing grants for the rent and administration costs. Smigielski noted that a discussion was
had with Conlon to charge income generating programs those costs. Conlon explained that it was
determined that there was $100,000 that they were able to bill indirect costs and this would decrease
the levy request. Smigielski explained that program generated revenue has stayed in the accounts of
the Health Department, this is what we are tapping into. Conlon noted that there are a lot of Federal
cuts and in the future they will need those fund balances to balance out the programs for operation.
Conlon reported that she does feel comfortable tapping into $100,000 of that to offset the levy request
for this year. Discussion of the projected fund balances for the end of 2025. Conlon noted that the
overage in these accounts are from program generated income, so these are services that are paid
for through Medicaid. Discussion regarding fees and the potential revenue.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to amend the 2026 Public Health budget by $50,000 out of
Sanitarian line item, $25,000 from Family Planning and $25,000 from Immunization. All “Aye”; 1
Student Aye; Motion passes.

Break called at 9:36 a.m.
Return from break 9:44 a.m.
Student did not return

Human Services — Fried noted that there have been many changes in this department, reporting that
this is a very large percentage of the County's Budget. Fried stated that the combined department's
request in the past was 23% and now it is 29%. Human Service Director Beth Hoerchler stated that
this is a huge transition year, with the adding of 31 positions since January. Hoerchler explained that
there is a lot of training and new people. Hoerchler reported that they have a plan to reduce the
amount of tax levy requested. Financial Services Supervisor Heidi Chavez explained that the total
$439,345 is the tax levy request, she noted that the majority of the contribution is for Family Care.
Chavez explained that this is a required cost and this cost will never go away. Chavez noted that this
can be paid with tax levy or a General Fund transfer. Smigielski noted that this is appropriate to place
this on the levy as this is an ongoing cost. Smigielski explained that this has been charged in the
past to the Human Service Center. Chavez presented additional proposed cost savings. Chavez
explained that there is a part-time screener that was moved to a full-time screener that was budgeted
for twice. Smigielski noted that this was budgeted both in the Sheriff’s Office and Human Services,
this would reduce costs by $65,000 to the Human Service Budget. Smigielski noted this would
remain in the Sheriff's Department, but removed from the Human Services. Chavez noted that they
were notified after the budget was set of additional funding from an ADRC grant in the amount of
$19,862, so they are able to reduce the request from the County. Chavez explained that they have a
couple of options for cost reductions in the Nutrition Program at the ADRC that include increasing the
amount for the suggested meal contribution, reduce the days for the dining sites or reduce delivery
days for meals. Chavez noted that this would be $24,420. Schreier noted that there are benefits of
the programs and was not in favor of a reduction. Discussion regarding a reduction noting that the
Committee can make those determinations on what items they would like to adjust. Chavez went
over some issues with revenue coming in regarding the billing for Medicaid and other insurances.
Chavez noted there were also some contracted services and once those contracts end there should
be a savings. Discussion regarding Finance personnel. Chavez explained the positions and what
their duties are. Fried stated that when it was determined that Human Service Center transition to the



Agenda

County that there was to be a savings, the costs are more than anticipated. Fried questioned if they
could reduce an additional $50,000 from the budget. Chavez noted that the out-of-home care has
skyrocketed and is over $2 Million over spent, this is due to out-of-home care that is court ordered.
Chavez reported that the Social Workers are actively working to get these kids back home and that
will reduce the out-of-home care costs. Chavez explained that the Social Worker positions have levy
funding. Hoerchler explained that the caseloads at this time are high. Hoerchler explained that they
may ask for an additional therapist, these services are needed and this may reduce referrals.
Discussion regarding contracting with Forest and Vilas and the charges to Forest and Vilas for
services. Fried questioned Continuing Appropriation accounts balances and if they could use the
funds for other purposes. Holewinski stated they would like to look at the other counties, to determine
if they intend to provide their own services and not contract with Oneida. Holewinski noted that we do
not want to list expenses that we will not have. Chavez explained that these are spelled out in a
written contract.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fisher to amend the 2026 Human Services Department budget, reducing
the levy request by $100,000 with changes to Emergency Services, ADRC grant funding and ADRC
meal program and forward on to the final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break at 11:03 a.m.
Return from Break 11:12 a.m.

Human Services — Fried questioned a decrease in line item Public Charges Client Payments.
Chavez explained that this is the OWI Intoxicated Drivers Program. Chavez reported that the reason
for the decrease was that Forest County originally stated they would not participate in the OWI
program. Chavez noted that they are now going to participate, which will generate revenue. Chavez
reported that this would be approximately $20,000.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to amend the Human Services Budget, increasing public charges
for the OWI Intoxicated Drivers Program by $20,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Human Services — Chavez noted that the major increase to the tax levy request was for the Family
Care payment. Fried stated that he would like Chavez to look at the numbers and see if there was
anything additional they would like to bring forward on Wednesday.

Veteran’s Services — Tammy Javenkoski Veterans Service Officers stated that this will be her last
budget noting she has been in this position for almost 20 years. Javenkoski presented her budget
stating that there was a 5% increase on the State VA grant. Javenkoski reported that grant always is
applied to the salary of the Veterans Service Officer. Javenkoski explained that due to her retirement
they budgeted and overestimated the wages for next year. Javenkoski reported that there would be
Health Insurance for retiree costs. Fried questioned the staffing levels asking if the part-time position
could be eliminated. Javenkoski noted that the PACT Act was the reason for the addition of the part-
time position. Fried questioned if a Federal Agency helps process these claims. Hartman went over
claims numbers noting that through this year it is 12 cases per month. Fried reported that we are
going to break and will amend the Budget with number closer to what the actual budget will be.

Break called at 11:40 a.m.
Return from break at 12:30



Agenda

Veteran’s Services — Fried stated that Javenkoski and Daily were to come back and to have reviewed
the personnel numbers. Fried explained that it was determined that the personnel line item could be
reduced by $8,260.

Motion/Second: Fried/Holewinski to amend the Veteran’s Services budget by reducing the
Personnel line item by $8,260 and forward on the amended budget the final budget hearings on
Wednesday. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Forestry, Land & Outdoor Recreation — Forestry Director Jill Nemec presented the budget. Nemec
noted that stumpage is volatile and fluctuates. Fried questioned a software that is listed in the budget
for $20,000 and questioned the need. Nemec explained with the software a credit card can then be
used to make camping reservations. Holewinski questioned if this would increase the revenues.
Nemec noted that they do not feel that it will, this would increase efficiencies. Discussion regarding
the yearly fee for the software being passes on to the users. Fried questioned that in this proposed
reduction of time, it does not sound like it would reduce staffing in the office. Fried stated he would
like to remove the expense for the software and advised the department to look into other options.
Fried questioned if the County could bill more indirect costs to the State Aid for the Snowmobile
Trails. Nemec stated that if we take out of the State funds, it would just reduce the amount that would
then be given to the snowmobile clubs. Holewinski questioned how much does the County keep of
the $ 515,000 Snowmobile Trails Fund for administering that account. Tischendorf noted very little.
Smigielski clarified approximately $5000. Fried questioned stumpage revenue reduction.
Tischendorf noted that they determined this from what is on the books at this time. Discussion
regarding Continuing Appropriation Accounts.

Motion/Second: Fried/Jensen to amend the Forestry Budget and increase stumpage revenue to $1
Million and remove the $20,000 in software expenses and forward on to the final budget hearing. All
“Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Tischendorf reported that there is a tentative grant approval received in the amount of
$24,000 for ski-trail grooming to be applied over a two-year period.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to amend the Forestry Budget by increasing State Aids by $12,000.
All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Tischendorf reported that there was an error in her Budget. Tischendorf explained that
there was a project development grant for ATV for $77,450, explaining that the revenue was added to
the budget but the expense was not. Tischendorf explained that this is a pass-through grant so they
will need to add the expense of $77,450 to the budget.

Motion/Second: Fried/Harris to amend the Forestry Budget to increase the Capital Outlay expense
by $77,450. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Fried/Showalter to amend the Forestry Budget and reduce Other Capital
Improvement Expense by $5,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break 1:27 p.m.
Return from break 1:33 p.m.



Agenda

Land Information — Sarah Chiamulera presented her budget, noting that 2025 is going well.
Chiamulera stated there were some transitions and they are now fully staffed. Chiamulera explained
there is a small increase for employee wages and expenses but there are really no changes.
Chiamulera went over her continuing appropriation account for $20,000 for the Arial Photography
Flight. Fried questioned public charges and if income could be increased. Chiamulera went over the
costs of maps and noted that a lot of map requests is public records data.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Holewinski to adopt the Land Information budget as presented and move
it forward to the final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Register of Deeds — Register of Deeds Kyle Franson presented his budget. Franson noted that there
are three to his office; Abstract, Vital Records/copy and Transfer Fees.

Showalter left at 2:00 p.m.

Register of Deeds — Franson stated that they are above average for revenues but does not feel that
will be the norm. Discussion regarding adjusting the Transfer Fee income.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Holewinski to amend the 2026 Register of Deeds budget to increase
Transfer Fee revenue by $35,000 and forward it on to the final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chairman Fried adjourned the meeting at 2:13 p.m.




Agenda

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
OCTOBER 7, 2025
MINUTES

YEAR 2026 BUDGET HEARINGS
The Executive Committee will meet to consider budget requests and review the overall year 2026 Oneida County Budget.

Committee members present: Chairman Billy Fried; Robb Jensen; Steven Schreier; Russ Fisher;
Scott Holewinski; Connor Showalter
Absent: Harris

Call to order: Chairman Fried called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m. in the County Board Room of
the Oneida County Courthouse. The meeting has been properly posted and mailed in accordance
with the Wisconsin Open Meeting law and the facility is handicap accessible.

Approve Agenda:
Motion/Second: Schreier/Fisher to approve today’s Amended Agenda with the order of items at the
Chair’s discretion. All “Aye”; Motion carried.

Public comment: None

Continue 2026 Budget Hearings:

District Attorney — District Attorney Jillian Pfeifer presented her budget, noting that most of the
request is for employee wages. Pfeifer stated she is well within her budget with no significant
changes. Pfeifer noted that the state approved adding a part-time ADA due to caseload numbers.
Pfeifer explained that due to office space they are not able to bring that part-time person on, however
she is working on finding a solution. Pfeifer reported that if this happens, it would be a net neutral
budget change.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve the 2026 District Attorney’s department budget as
presented and forward it on to the final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Smigielski explained that with yesterday and the changes made to department budgets,
there was a reduction in the deficit of $254,810 and the deficit is now at $751,045. Fried reminded
the committee that when looking at department budgets we also need to look at staffing/vacancies
levels and Continuing Appropriation Accounts.

Sheriff’'s Office — Sheriff Hartman presented his budget and went over his Continuing Appropriation
Accounts. Hartman went over the line item for Hospital Subsidy, noting that this was due to a
contract with Aspirus. Hartman reported that he is giving the balance of $141,520.31 back, noting
that this account was in use when there was a revolving contract with Aspirus. Hartman explained
that there is a set contract and there is no longer a need for this account as there will be no
fluctuations. Discussion regarding where the funds originated and if it was above or below the tax
levy. Hartman reported that the Ambulance Revenue of $573,590.17 is related to the Ambulance
Contract and that can go back to the County. Discussion regarding the Sheriff's Department



Agenda

potentially needing those funds. Hartman reported that the Continuing Appropriation Accounts were
looked into after the budget was set. Discussion regarding other potential cuts to the Sheriff's
Department Budget. Discussion regarding furniture for outside the Sheriff’s Office listed in the
Buildings and Grounds budget, Sheriff Hartman noted that request can be removed. Discussion
regarding vacancy dollars and staffing levels. Sheriff Hartman noted that Health Insurance was over
budgeted by $97,400. Captain Teri Hook explained that this was not due to the change in premiums,
this was over budgeted in general. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman
explained that a Motion can be made to reduce the Health Insurance by $85,000. Smigielski noted
that you want to leave a little room in that budget. Sheriff Hartman reported that the epoxy CIP that
was presented can be removed, they intend on testing the product in the Sallyport and will fund it
through Jail Assessment Fees. Smigielski explained that if the accounts with the proposed
reductions were emptied, it needs to be determined where the funding will need to be allocated.
Smigielski noted that if these were Ambulance/Emergency Management levy funds that were
returned, they may need to be allocated back to Ambulance/Emergency Management expenses and
not the General Fund. Sheriff Hartman reported that some wages can be billed to the Ambulance
Levy in the amount of $113,900. Discussion that fringes and wages should be added for a total of
$145,000. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman stated there are also indirect cost
of $57,500 that could be billed to the Ambulance Levy. Smigielski explained the process of allocating
these expenses. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman explained this would
include IT, Corp Counsel, rent and utilities among other things. Schreier noted that this more of a
true cost of Emergency Services. Discussion regarding dispatch being used for Ambulance services.
Holewinski explained this is just moving the costs to where they should be.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Holewinski to amend the 2026 Sheriff’s Office budget by $160,000 by
allocating 25% of the Sheriff, Chief Deputy and 2 Mechanics and 10% for the Dispatch Lieutenant
and $57,500 in indirect costs for a total of $217,500 shift to the EMS Levy. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Sheriff's Office — Sheriff Hartman presented Jail Revenue, noting that Buildings and Grounds is paid
some funding from the Jail Revenue. Hartman explained that 4% is paid monthly to Buildings and
Grounds, the actual amounts fluctuates due to inmate levels. Discussion regarding inmate revenue.

Showalter entered at 9:48 a.m.

Sheriff's Office — Discussion regarding the impact of changing the budgeting for Inmate Revenue.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fisher to amend the 2026 Sheriff's Office budget by $85,000 by reducing
Health Insurance. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break called at 9:53 a.m.
Return from break at 10:01 a.m.

Circuit Court Branch | ; Circuit Court Branch Il — Branch | Judicial Assistant Patricia Finlan presented
both Branch | and Il budget noting that there are really no changes from last year’s budget. Fried
discussed the audio visual for the family courtroom, asking about the additional funding from the
state. Finlan explained that the State of Wisconsin reimburses the County for Guardian Ad Litem
and other fees/expenses. Finlan noted that the State of Wisconsin is giving our County an increase
of $36,500 and that increase is to be used for those costs. Finlan reported that the first floor hearing



Agenda

room is set up with an owl and there needs to be an update to the audiovisual. Finlan reported that
based on Statute, the State funding cannot be used for that update. Fried explained that the
audiovisual will be addressed tomorrow. Discussion regarding other potential funding available from
the State.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Holewinski to approve the 2026 Circuit Court Branch | and Circuit Court
Branch Il budget as presented and forward on to the final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Corporation Counsel — Assistant Corporation Counsel Andy Kaftan noted that this budget is in line
with prior years. Discussion of potential future changes to the handling of CHIPS cases.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Holewinski to approve the 2026 Corporation Counsels budget as
presented and forward on to the final budget hearing tomorrow. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Medical Examiner — County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman presented the budget for
the Medical Examiner’s Department. Hartman explained that the budget is a decrease over previous
years due to the change in the organization of employees. Hartman noted that one full-time position
was eliminated, this budget reflects this change regarding wages and fringes. Hartman explained
that there is a proposed reduction in charges to the counties that contract with us, as the reduction in
the cost to the department should also be passed on to those counties. Hartman explained that the
department still has two vehicles, this is something that will be looked into for next year.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the 2026 Medical Examiner budget and forward it on to
tomorrows hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break called at 10:40 a.m.
Return from break at 10:58 a.m.

Building and Grounds — County Facility Director Troy Huber presented his budget, noting that there
have been challenges as they have taken on new buildings. Huber reported that one thing they can
eliminate is the flowers/fertilizer in the amount of $9000, noting that its not something he wants to lose
but that is an option. Discussion regarding Continuing Appropriation accounts. Discussion regarding
projection for future purchases and planning CIP’s. Smigielski went over the definition of CIP projects
and Continuing Appropriation Accounts. Discussion regarding potentially pulling the blacktop repair
and reducing the Equipment Account.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to amend the 2026 County Facility Budget to reduce the Continuing
Appropriation for Equipment from $25,000 to $10,000 and reduce Continuing Appropriation
Sidewalk/Blacktop repair from $15,000 to zero.

Roll Call Vote on Motion: Jensen, Nay; Showalter, Nay; Fried, Aye; Holewinski, Aye; Schreier, Aye;
Fisher, Aye; Motion passes.

Building and Grounds — Discussion regarding staffing levels. Kennedy noted that they could increase
intergovernmental charges for prisoner revenue by approximately $20,000. Huber cautioned the
committee, explaining that this amount is projected. Kennedy explained that 4% of the prisoner
revenue is paid to Buildings and Grounds from the Sheriff's Office.



Agenda

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried to amend the 2026 County Facility Budget by reducing the Capital
Outlay Expense for furniture by $7300 and increasing Prisoner Revenue by $25,000. All “Aye”;
Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Fried/Jensen to move the amended 2026 County Facility Budget to the final
budget hearing tomorrow. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break called at 12:04 p.m.
Return from break 12:51 p.m.
Showalter did not return

Discussion: Fried reviewed the remaining budgets for Thursday. Fried stated that Showalter has
been excused and will not be returning.

Clerk of Court — Fried questioned interest income. Smigielski reported that the Clerk of Courts has a
separate bank account that is a State of Wisconsin controlled account. Smigielski noted that this is
restricted and Clerk of Courts gets the bank statement for the account. Smigielski stated they are
now generating interest income though the fund balance and that is not theirs to keep. Smigielski
stated that $20,000 is probably a pretty accurate projection. Fried expressed interest in increasing
the projected interest income. Fried noted that the budget is pretty straight forward.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to amend the 2026 Clerk of Court Budget and increase
Miscellaneous Revenue from $20,000 to $25,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to forward the amended 2026 Clerk of Courts Budget to tomorrow's
budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Land Conservation — County Conservationist Michelle Sadauskas presented her proposed budget.
Sadauskas stated they are highly grant-dependent, noting that there was an increase in revenue.
Sadauskas stated that there is an increase with wages and fringe, but have otherwise kept it to a zero
increase. Smigielski noted that in the past they have done a great job billing indirect costs to grants.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Fisher to approve the 2026 Land Conservation budget as submitted and
forward it to tomorrow's final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Planning and Zoning — Planning and Zoning Director Karl Jennrich presented his budget. Jennrich
presented the staffing levels back to 1998. Jennrich discussed vacancies and LTE’s. Jennrich noted
they are coming in at a zero increase and expenses are going up. Jennrich stated that they could
reduce programs or increase revenue, noting that the revenue sources are sanitary and building
permits. Jennrich explained that there could be an increase to fees, but does not feel that the permit
sales amount will increase. Discussion regarding increasing fees or total permit sales.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to amend the 2026 Planning and Zoning Department's Budget,
increasing Public Charges by $40,000 in Planning and Zoning for a total $820,000. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Holewinski to amend the Planning and Zoning Budget by decreasing the
Grants to Institutions by $2000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.



Agenda

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to move the amended 2026 Planning and Zoning Budget to the
final budget hearing. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

UW Extension — Extension Director Amber Rehberg from UW Extension presented her budget.
Rehberg stated they are at the same staffing levels of 2025. Rehberg reported that the largest
expense is personnel. Discussion regarding increasing revenues/fees.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to amend the UW Extension Budget by increasing Public
Charges for Service by $2,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Fried/Holewinski to move the amended UW Extension budget to the final budget
hearing for consideration, noting that there may be additional discussion. All “Nay”, Motion fails.

Motion/Second: Jensen/No Second to move the amended UW Extension budget to the final
budget hearing for consideration. Motion fails due to no Second.

Discussion: Discussion that there may be additional discussions regarding potential staffing
adjustments, the determination was made to address it in tomorrow’s Budget Hearing. There was an
additional meeting date set for Thursday at 8:30 a.m. in case it was needed. Smigielski reported that
the deficit is now at $337,245 with today’s adjustments. Discussion regarding what departments were
requested to return.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chairman Fried adjourned the meeting at 2:39 p.m.




Agenda

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
OCTOBER 8, 2024
MINUTES

YEAR 2026 BUDGET HEARINGS
The Executive Committee will meet to consider budget requests and review the overall year 2026 Oneida County
Budget.

Committee members present: Chairman Billy Fried; Robb Jensen; Steven Schreier; Russ
Fisher; Scott Holewinski; Connor Showalter; Dianna Harris

Call to order: Chairman Fried called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in the County Board Room
of the Oneida County Courthouse. The meeting has been properly posted and mailed in
accordance with the Wisconsin Open Meeting law and the facility is handicap accessible.

Approve Agenda:
Motion/Second: Jensen/Showalter to approve today’s Amended Agenda with the order of items
at the Chair’s discretion. All “Aye”; Motion carried.

Continue 2026 Budget Hearings: Fried stated that as a County, we are in a good position and
have strategies to work with. Fried noted that the hope is to complete and balance the budget by
the end of day. Smigielski reported that after the two days of hearings, the deficit has been
reduced to $337,245. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman explained what
happened with the discussion with UW Extension at the end of day yesterday. Hartman reported
that a discussion was had and ideas were discussed that included: increasing revenue to $6,500,
possibly reducing the hours that office is available to the public and possibly increasing support
that the office could provide to other departments. Hartman proposed that Rehberg and her will
work together to develop a plan with some options to present to the UW Extension Committee,
noting this will not change the budget but will have some potential savings in the following year.
Schreier expressed support for this plan, stating that it details a path that is doable. Rehberg
explained that she was in agreement to this plan. Hartman reported that Rehberg should be
commended in her efforts.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to amend the 2026 UW Extension Budget to increase the
revenue by $2,000 for a total of $6,500 and forward the amended budget for final consideration
later today. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Public comment: None

Human Services: Fried explained that one of the goals was for the Department to come back and
see if there were any additional cuts to be made. Hoerchler reported that Forest County will
continue to contract with us for services for 2026, noting that both Forest and Vilas will then be
contracting with Oneida County. Hoerchler stated that it keeps being brought up that there were
discussions had regarding a potential cost savings with this transition. Hoerchler explained that
she supplied a copy of the restructuring goals for the transition, cost savings to the County is not
listed. Hoerchler explained that she was not the Department Head at the time of the transition, but




Agenda

was under the impression that the Committee and County Board knew that this transition would
cost more. Fried explained that efficiencies should be the goals. Fried noted that one of the goals
to bring back to the Committee was for the Human Service Department to determine if there were
additional cost savings. Heidi Chavez explained that when the budget was created, they did not
know what the State Allocation would be. Chavez explained that the State released those
allocation amounts, Oneida County lost significantly. Chavez reported that it has been reduced by
$147,000 for state funding. Chavez went over what is billed to the other counties for services
provided by our County. Chavez discussed increasing OWI court revenue, increasing ADRC
revenue and reducing ADRC meals. Chavez reported that they are working on increasing billable
hours. Chavez explained that they have been working on eliminating a wait list with the intent of
reducing out-of-home care costs. Smigielski explained what changes have already been made
with a motion. Smigielski noted that it may be helpful in the future years to break out the budget
into what was Social Services, Human Service Center and ADRC as this would show
comparables. Smigielski explained that they are combined but it would be helpful for the
Supervisors and the budget purposes. Chavez explained that this is new and they are still working
on efficiencies and minimizing the tax levy request. Schreier noted that we should look at the
contracts with the other Counties and if we are benefiting as a County to provide these services to
them. Schreier stated we need to determine in the future if we want to continue this process,
noting that this creates a dependency on Oneida County with contracting. Hoerchler explained
that there is a six-month notice from either party to exit the contract. Holewinski stated that the
Human Service Center received the same amount of money and they had a huge reserve of funds,
why are the services costing more. Discussion regarding the differences of budgeting. Fried
questioned public charges for services. Hoerchler went over vacancies for this year noting that this
should be lower for next year. Holewinski stated that we knew that there was going to be a couple
of years of transition, there is also a new Department Head in this department.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to amend the 2026 Human Service budget by increasing the
OWI Court revenue by $12,917 and forward to the final review at the end of day. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

Tourism Council: Fried noted that when making cuts we really need to look at non-mandated
services. Fried stated that there could be other mechanisms for funding. Smigielski went over the
Tourism budget, noting the request for this year is $100,000 of levy. Chair of Oneida County
Tourism Council Jackie Sharpe reported that this is not an outside agency. Sharpe explained that
this is representation for other parts of the County that do not have a mechanism to promote
tourism. Sharpe noted that this markets the County as a whole. Lauren Sacket explained that
Tourism is an investment and directly affects revenue. Fried reported that he would like to
eliminate the whole budget, at minimum a reduction. Jensen asked if there was a funding source
that could be obtained. Sharpe noted that the only funding received is from the County. Fried
explained that the money spent would be better spent in mandated services. Fried noted that if
this is to fund the Towns that do not have a Chamber or representation, let them pay for their own
tourism representation if they want that.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Fried to reduce the 2026 Tourism Council budget to $70,000 and
forward on to the final vote.

Discussion: Schreier explained that he does not feel that tourism should be eliminated although a
slight reduction is something that he could support.




Agenda

Vote on Motion: 5 Aye; 2 Nay, Jensen, Showalter; Motion passes.

Library Board: Smigielski went over the library funding, noting that there is the required funding
and what is above that requirement. Smigielski explained that the Library is above the allowable
Levy Limit. Smigielski explained how library funding works. Holewinski questioned the
documentation that was requested at the August meeting splitting out the usage/cost by town and
the contingency funds/bank accounts available to each library. Holewinski reported that was not
received. Discussion regarding usage, services offered and Continuing Appropriation Accounts.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Showalter to amend the 2026 Library Board and decrease the 2026
Library Board budget request by the two variances for Rhinelander and Minocqua for a total of
$9,456 and forward it on to the final vote.

Public Comment: Debbie Valine resident of the City of Rhinelander spoke in support of the
library. Kim Widmer of Minocqua of the Minocqua Library spoke in favor of the Library. Bill
Freudenberg, Vice President of the Rhinelander Board of Trustees, spoke in support of the Library.
Vote on Motion: 3 Aye, Jensen, Holewinski, Showalter; 4 Nay, Harris, Schreier, Fisher, Fried;
Motion fails.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to forward the 2026 Library Budget request on to the final vote.
Roll Call Vote: Harris, Aye; Jensen, Aye; Holewinski, Aye; Fried, Aye; Showalter, Nay; Schreier,
Aye; Fisher, Aye; Motion passes.

Break called at 10:37 a.m.
Return from break at 10:46 a.m.

Humane Society: Fried noted that the budget has increased this year, but it seems to be justified.
Holewinski went over the history and noted that this service is based on volunteers. Holewinski
reported that 78% of their budget comes from fees, donations and fund raisers to aid in support of
the Humane Society. Holewinski explained that animal control is required by State Statute.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Schreier to forward the 2026 Humane Society budget as presented
and forward on to the final determination.

Discussion: Discussion regarding funding. Otis noted that the City requested they reduce the
funding request and that was not supported.
Vote on Motion: All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Airport: Smigielski stated that the requested levy for the Airport is $197,081. Fried questioned if
there was going to be any kind of reduction proposed in the future for the County and to the City or
if the request was going to be the same. Leitner reported that the request is the same as past
years, $197,081. Leitner explained that the request has not increased for 13 years and costs have
increased. Holewinski stated that there was a meeting set in Feb of 2025 and the Commissioners
did not show up. Discussion regarding how that meeting was handled. Leitner stated that he
would take responsibility for that. Holewinski questioned fund balances available. Fried suggested
that there needs to be more dialog and we should use the surplus before asking for more taxpayer
funding. Jensen stated that he does not want to penalize success, there is increased usage and
growth. Jensen explained that this brings business and tourism to the County, this is not an



Agenda

unrealistic request. Holewinski stated that this is City and County owned and we need to fund it,
but at some point we want it to be self-sufficient. Leitner explained that if it is a public airport it
needs to be supported by the County and City otherwise it would be privately owned. Schreier
noted he was in favor of the budget as presented. Fisher explained that if we start cutting their
budget, it will inhibit growth.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Fried to approve the 2026 Airport budget as presented and forward it
on to the final vote. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Economic Development Commission: Tony Pharo of Economic Development presented the
budget. Smigielski stated that the requested amount is $146,500, which is consistent with the
2025 request.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Holewinski to approve the 2026 Economic Development Commission
budget as presented and forward it on to the final vote. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

County Treasurer: Fried asked if there were any adjustments or cuts the Treasurer would like to
present. Treasurer Tara Ostermann reported no, the budget is as presented.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Fisher to approve the 2026 County Treasurer’s budget as presented
and forward it to the final vote at the end of the day. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Labor Relations and Employee Services (LRES): Lueneburg presented the budget for LRES.
Lueneburg explained that there was a reduction in personnel cost by approximately $30,000 and
an increase in retiree health with a net reduction of $16,635. Lueneburg went over her remaining
budget. Fried questioned revenue. Lueneburg explained that they are doing some employee
testing for other counties to increase revenue.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the 2026 Labor Relations and Employee Services
budget as presented and forward to the final vote at the end of the day. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

County Clerk/Insurance and Risk Management/County Board and Committees: Smigielski
reported that County Clerk, Insurance and Risk Management and County Board are all under the
County Clerk prevue. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman went over her
budget noting that the difference listed is for the addition of the Administrative Coordinator position.
Hartman noted that the insurance renewal is in process at this time and the numbers are not solid
at this time. Smigielski explained the Workers Comp and general liability should be looked at in a
couple of months when we have better data of the actual numbers and we will have better data.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Harris to approve the 2026 County Clerk, Insurance, Risk Management
and County Board Budgets as presented and forward it on to the final vote at the end of day. All
“‘Aye”; Motion passes.

Finance Department: Smigielski noted that with the ERP system implementation and the savings,
we have been able to reduce staffing levels in the Finance Department. Smigielski presented
revenues for the department.




Agenda

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to increase the revenue for the 2026 Finance budget by $5500.
All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Fried/Jensen to forward the amended 2026 Finance budget on to the final vote
at the end of the day. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Revisit Forestry: Tischendorf went over some of the accounts and reported that they were able
to find $16,325. Tischendorf explained that $3,325 will be received as a grant to be added as
revenue, $3,000 in Continuing Appropriation for tree planting and $10,000 from the Forestry
Automotive Equipment Continuing Appropriation Account for a total of $16,325. Holewinski
questioned the Forestry Roads Continuing Appropriations Account. Fried noted that there is a CIP
for roads that will be discussed later in the day.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried increase revenue by $3,325, decrease Cultural Treatment
expense account by $3,000 and utilize the Forestry Equipment Continuing Appropriation Account
by $10,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break called at 11:56 a.m.
Return from break at 12:49 p.m.
Showalter did not return.

Solid Waste Department: Smigielski explained that Solid Waste is an enterprise fund and more
like a privately run business. Smigielski reported that any change to this budget will have no
change to the tax levy. Bauknecht reported that the budget is pretty similar to last year with an
increase in revenue. Discussion regarding the presented budget.

Motion/Second: Fried/Holewinski to approve the Solid Waste budget as presented and forward
it to the final vote. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Fried reported that the CIP for Solid Waste was previously approved. Smigielski
explained that the three 2026 CIP’s presented are all out of the Solid Waste Fund. Fried noted
that the total CIPs are approximately $256,000. Smigielski reported that the unrestricted fund
balance at end of year 2024 for Solid Waste is $284,000.

Highway Department: Fried explained the discussion will be the budget only. Hegeman reported
that everything is similar, there is some fluctuation in the Bridge Aid Program Account that is
overseen by Highway but that is not department funding. Schreier questioned the two open
positions listed that have been open for some time. Hegeman noted that those positions are not
funded, so if it was cut there would be no savings to the Levy. Hegeman reported that there may
be an increase with the state budget for the Routine Maintenance Agreement for 2026 and
potentially 2027. Hegeman explained that if that is the case, those positions may be funded in the
future. Smigielski reported that the Highway Fund should be zero and there is now a $10,000 boat
launch that we just found out we were owners of. Smigielski explained that this has to be listed
separate, as it is not part of the Highway business unit. Smigielski explained that this should be
moved to the General Fund, as a book keeping issue.




Agenda

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to move the $10,000 deficit that is in 710 Highway Internal
Service Fund to the General Fund. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Harris to approve the amended 2026 Highway Department Budget as
presented and forward it on to the final budget vote. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Tina reported that $725,325 in adjustments have been made at this time.

Information Technology Systems: Rhodes distributed a spreadsheet listing the software
maintenance that IT is responsible for. Fried asked if there were any changes in the budget after
that was set. Rhodes explained that $100,000 was already removed from Continuing
Appropriations to offset the increases for 2026. Rhodes presented his budget. Discussion
regarding the MS 360 Migration, if this was completed it would remove $100,000 out of the budget.
Discussion regarding the remaining budget. Discussion regarding contracted services. Discussion
regarding other department costs/charges and any potential cuts or revenue increase.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried to amend the 2026 Information Technology Systems budget by a
total of $165,000 reducing the Software Maintenance Account by $100,000, add $30,000 to
Continuing Appropriations Revenue and reduce the Contracted Services line item by $35,000. All
“Aye”; Motion passes

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to forward the amended 2026 Information Technology Systems
budget and forward to the final vote. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Break called at 2:06 p.m.
Return from break at 2:13 p.m.

Executive Committee Continued:

Debt Service/Trusts, Contingency & Transfers: Smigielski noted that we should look at County
Sales Tax, shared revenue and interest earned. Smigielski reported that $7,225,000 is listed for
Sales Tax, noting that the Department of Revenue is projecting a 2.9 percent increase for 2026.
Smigielski reported that $2 Million was listed in the budget for interest earned, this is not overly
conservative. Smigielski explained that Shared Revenue is a formula that is determined from the
state, noting that the last two years we ended up with more. Discussion regarding options for any
adjustments.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Jensen to amend the Contractual Fees Contingency by $15,503,
increase Sales Tax by $50,000 and increase Interest Earned by $50,000. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

Discussion: Smigielski reported that the County is now at a zero deficit.

Opioid and ARPA funds: Smigielski explained the rules for ARPA funding. Smigielski reported
that there is $43,560 set aside for the ERP upgrade and $8300 for the audit. Smigielski stated that
this is just appropriating the roll over funds.




Agenda

Motion/Second: Fried/Holewinski to approve the ARPA Budget as presented. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

Opioid and ARPA funds: Smigielski reported that as of the end of August the cash balance for
the Opioid funding was $930,902. Smigielski explained that there is $898,000 of uncommitted
Opioid Funds. Smigielski reported that the interest earned income on the Opioid Funding is
$83,000, it is to be determined if the interest income is restricted to Opioid only expenditures.
Smigielski noted that for the 2026 budget, there were only two formal requests for new projects.
Smigielski reported that there were additional deposits received in August.

Motion/Second: Fried/Jensen to adjust the Opioid Fund Balance by $135,000 and to apply
Opioid Settlement Funds to the 15t floor courtroom Audio Visual equipment in an amount not to
exceed $30,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

CIP: Smigielski reported that the Capital Improvement plan is a three-year plan. Smigielski noted
that all CIP’s are listed regardless of the funding source. Smigielski explained the definition of a
capital asset and what is allowed. Smigielski stated that the County’s unrestricted fund balance
was $9.9 Million as of December 31, 2024. Smigielski reminded the committee that there will be
an approximately $1- $2 Million deficit for Human Services due to placements. Smigielski
presented the proposed requests for future year’s CIP projects.

Harris left at 2:51 p.m.

CIP: Fried presented the Forestry CIP requests. Fried questioned the Shingle Mill Road project
and if that was something that needs to be done. Nemec reported that it is not the worst out of all
of the roads but is the main thoroughfare to access other roads and is the highest traveled as it
services the campground. Nemec stated this is a 9 mile road and this CIP is to complete 6 miles of
that road. Nemec noted that there are 21 culverts alone on Shingle Mill, this would bring it up to
DOT standards for a County Forest Road. Tischendorf stated that the projected ending balance
for the Road Continuing Appropriation Account next year is $35,000. Discussion regarding any
potential reductions.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier apply $10,000 from the Forestry Road Construction Continuing
Appropriation account to the Shingle Mill project and reduce the General Fund request to
$200,000. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

CIP: Fried noted that there was no action taken on the plow or loader, they will be included in the
CIP project list. Fried reported that the Sheriff asked to remove the LEC Garage Flooring project
as they wanted to test the product first on the sallyport.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Schreier to remove the Buildings and Grounds LEC Garage
Flooring Project in the amount of $180,000 from the 2026 CIP project list. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

CIP: Discussion regarding the plow truck for Buildings and Grounds. Huber explained that the
estimated Trade in value is $15,000.



Agenda

Motion/Second: Fisher/Schreier to adjust the 2026 Buildings and Grounds Plow Truck CIP
request to $55,000 from the General Fund, with $15,000 to come from the department fund from
the trade-in for the old plow truck. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

CIP: Fried reported that the Highway Department approved the Space Study and moving forward
on the electrical. Fried explained that there was a truck request for $390,000 as a General Fund
loan. Cushing is requesting that this be a General Fund request and not a loan. Hegeman
presented what is being completed at the Highway Department regarding the upgrades. Fried
explained that the $390,000 should remain as a General Fund loan. Discussion regarding the
Sand/Dam Boat landing project.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried to remove the Sand/Dam Boat Landing General Fund loan
request, with funding to be approved at a future date and to approve the other projects as
presented. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

CIP: Fried explained that the adjustments made will not affect any of the presented IT CIPS. Fried
did an overview of the proposed IT projects. Discussion regarding the upgrades to the Human
Service Timber Drive location.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier move the General Fund Transfers and 2026 CIPS to the Budget
draft. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Smigielski stated that she will be drafting Resolutions to be presented at the October
22, 2025 Executive Committee Meeting.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the draft budget that will be presented to the
November County Board with the appropriate Resolutions to be drafted and brought to the
Executive Meeting for October. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Future Meeting Dates:
The next meeting date was set for October 22, 2025.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chairman Fried adjourned the meeting at 3:26 p.m.




Agenda

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
OCTOBER 22, 2025
MINUTES

Committee members present: Chairman Billy Fried; Scott Holewinski; Russ Fisher; Robb Jensen;
Steven Schreier
Absent: Connor Showalter; Diana Harris

Call to order: Chairman Fried called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in the County Board Room of
the Oneida County Courthouse. The meeting has been properly posted and mailed in accordance
with the Wisconsin Open Meeting law and the facility is handicap accessible.

Approve Agenda:
Motion/Second: Holewinski/Schreier to approve today’s Amended Agenda with the order of items
at the Chair’s discretion. All “Aye”; Motion carried.

Approve Minutes of September 18, September 19 and September 24:
Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve the Minutes of September 18, September 19 and
September 24. All “Aye”; Motion carried.

Public comment: None

Oneida County Humane Society 2026 Contract: Finance Director Tina Smigielski explained that
this is the annual contract with the Humane Society. Smigielski reported that we are looking for
approval of the contract that is effective January 15t, 2026. Smigielski explained how the funding
works.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Fried to approve the Oneida County Humane Society 2026 Contract and
forward it on to the November County Board meeting as contingent on the approval of the County
Board. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to approve the 2026 Budget and 2025 Tax Levy Collected in 2026: Discussion
regarding what each of the towns pays for the Library.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve the Resolution to approve the 2026 Budget and 2025
Tax Levy Collected in 2026 as presented and forward it on to the November County Board meeting.
All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to approve the 2026 Cost of Living for General Municipal Employees: Human
Resource Director Jenni Lueneburg explained that this proposes a 2.64 percent Cost of Living
increase.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Schreier to approve the Resolution to approve the 2026 Cost of Living
for General Municipal Employees and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a
Consent Agenda item. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Discussion: Discussion regarding the process of making changes to proposed budget items.
Discussion regarding Consent Agenda items for the County Board meeting.

Resolution to amend loan from the General Fund to the Highway Department for purposes of
capital equipment purchases: Smigielski stated that this request was part of the CIP budget as a
General Fund loan. Smigielski noted that this would be added to the existing loan for the Highway
Department that will now total approximately $1.39 Million. Hegeman stated that he supports this.
Discussion regarding the process of a loan to an Enterprise Fund.




Agenda

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried to approve the Resolution to amend the loan from the General Fund
to the Highway Department for purposes of capital equipment purchases and forward it on to the
November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid settlement Funds allocation to Oneida
County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and Oneida County Resolution #58-2022
for the purpose of funding 50% of Peer Support Positions: Human Services Director Beth
Hoerchler explained that the CJCC committee proposed a plan for spending the funds from the
Opioid Settlement. Hoerchler presented the proposal to fund the position, noting that if the funding
goes away the positions go away. Hoerchler explained that this is just for the year 2026. Hoerchler
reported that this is for peer recovery and offers services to people who have AODA issues.
Motion/Second: Schreier/Jensen to approve the Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid
settlement Funds allocation to Oneida County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and
Oneida County Resolution # 58 — 2022 for the purpose of funding 50% of Peer Support Positions
and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All “Aye”;
Motion passes.

Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid settlement Funds allocation to Oneida
County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and Oneida County Resolution # 58 —
2022 for the purpose of funding improvements to the Hearing Room: Smigielski noted that this
was originally requested as a CIP, however this does not meet the criteria for a CIP. Smigielski
explained that this could be funded by the Opioid funds or interest income generated from the Opioid
Funding may be utilized.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid
settlement Funds allocation to Oneida County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and
Oneida County Resolution # 58 — 2022 for the purpose of funding improvements to the Hearing Room
and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All “Aye”;
Motion passes.

Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid settlement Funds allocation to Oneida
County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and Oneida County Resolution # 58 —
2022 for the Purpose of 2026 Treatment Alternative and Diversion (TAD) Grant match:
Hoerchler stated that they applied for the 2026 grant funding and it requires Opioid match funding.
Hoerchler noted that if they are not awarded the grant in future years, the service may go away.
Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve the Resolution to Authorize the Expenditure of Opioid
settlement Funds allocation to Oneida County in Accordance with Wisconsin Act 57 of 2021 and
Oneida County Resolution # 58 — 2022 for the Purpose of 2026 Treatment Alternative and Diversion
(TAD) Grant match and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda
item. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to Delegate Oneida County Investment Authority: Smigielski stated that the current
County Code language requires an annual delegation of investment authority to the Finance Director.
Smigielski explained that she is working with Hartman and Corporation Counsel on updating code
language so there would not be a need in the future to delegate.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve the Resolution to Delegate Oneida County Investment
Authority and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All
“‘Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to Designate Oneida County Public Depositories: Smigielski explained that this is a
normal process.




Agenda

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Jensen to approve the Resolution to Designate Oneida County Public
Depositories and forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All
“Aye”; Motion passes.

Resolution to Cancel Stale Dated Checks: Smigielski explained that the Treasurer’s Office does
reach out to people that have not cashed checks issued by the County. Smigielski noted that most of
these uncashed checks are jurors checks.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the Resolution to Cancel Stale Dated Checks and
forward it on to the November County Board meeting as a Consent Agenda item. All “Aye”; Motion
passes.

Continuing Appropriations Request — Radio Tower Project Surplus Funds: Smigielski explained
that in 2020 the radio tower was approved as a CIP. Smigielski reported that over $700,000 remains
as leftover funds from the CIP. Smigielski explained that the proposal is for some of those funds to
be left for ongoing maintenance and repairs in a Continuing Appropriation Account for the Sheriff's
Office and Buildings and Grounds and the rest would go to the General Fund. Smigielski noted that
she is in support of this, both departments are part of maintaining these towers. Discussion regarding
the proposed move of the funding. Sheriff Hartman noted that this is for Emergency Services and
when there is an issue, it would be wise to have funding set to the side to fix it promptly. Smigielski
explained it is appropriate to have this funding set to the side with the flexibility of making the
corrections/repairs timely. Discussion regarding the amount needed.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Schreier to authorize the Finance Director to move $225,000 for the
Sheriff’'s Office and $25,000 to Buildings and Grounds for tower and building maintenance. All “Aye”;
Motion passes.

Continuing Appropriations Request — EMS Ambulance Funds: Smigielski stated that there are
some substantial balances in the Hospital Subsidy and Ambulance Other accounts. Smigielski
explained that she identified the non-levy revenues associated to these balances. Smigielski
explained how the levy and non-levy funding can be utilized. Smigielski reported that she was able to
identify approximately $675,000 in non-levy revenue that exceeded the original budget going back to
2015. Smigielski explained that $140,000 in the Hospital Subsidy Continuing Appropriation can be
transferred to the General Fund and $540,000 can be transferred from Ambulance Other. Smigielski
verified that these are non-levy dollars. Smigielski explained that this is putting money back into the
General Fund. There was support from the committee to make these adjustments and direction was
given to the Finance Director to make the adjustments.

PFAS Committee: Fried stated that he wanted this on the agenda. Fried explained that there has
been a lot of discussion regarding PFAS. Fried noted there was interest in the County having a
committee created/involved as there may be additional future issues. Chad Lynch stated that a
committee could be helpful, as there may be additional litigation. Lynch reported that he would like to
delay creating a committee at this point as there is discussion going on. Schreier expressed concern
that all of the meetings would be in closed session due to continued ongoing litigation regarding this
issue. Fried stated that it sounds like the committee is in agreement to delay setting up a committee.

Break at 10:02 a.m.
Return from break at 10:10 a.m.

Monthly reports (including invoices paid, budget to actual) and department updates:
a. LRES - Lueneburg presented her reports. Lueneburg explained that the Deferred Comp
and VEBA account is proposed to be moved to a different vendor. Lueneburg stated that
by making the change to Voya the annual fee will be reduced and investment options are




Agenda

better. Lueneburg explained that they are preparing for open enroliment. Lueneburg
presented the vacancy report, noting what positions have been filled. Lueneburg reported
annual retention rate at 86%, and currently there are 23 vacant positions. Lueneburg
discussed the current pay for positions. Lueneburg presented the Workers Compensation
Report, noting that there are two open claims. Lueneburg stated that she will be doing a
full complete revision of the Employee Handbook, explaining that this may take four to six
months to complete. Fried explained that we want it updated, proposing that the current
Handbook be sent to the Committee Members. Discussion regarding the process of
reviewing the handbook and making changes. Fried noted that Lueneburg take the lead
and work with Hartman.

b. Finance — Smigielski stated that budget to actual and invoices paid are standard.
Smigielski presented the Sales Tax Report noting that it is looking to end within budget or
maybe a bit above.

c. ITS —The IT planning update was submitted and in the packet.
d. Treasurer — The Treasurer was excused due to attending a conference.
e. County Clerk — The budget to actual was submitted.

Public comment: None

Dates and items for future agenda/meetings: The next meeting date was set for November 5.

Closed Session - It is anticipated that a motion will be made, seconded, and approved by roll call vote
to enter into closed session pursuant to Section 19.85(1) (c), Wisconsin Stats., “considering
employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over
which this body has jurisdiction or responsibility” (Topic: Telecommunicator Compensation). A roll
call vote will be taken to go into closed session and it is anticipated that the Committee will return to
open session by roll call vote to consider the remainder of the meeting agenda.

Announcement of action taken in closed session, or take action based on closed session (NOTE: If
the announcement of action taken in closed session would compromise the need for the closed
session, the action taken will not be announced. Any action taken in closed session may be
announced when the need for the closed session has passed).

Motion/Second: Schreier/Holewinski to go into Closed Session at 10:54 a.m.
Roll Call Vote: Jensen, Aye; Holewinski, Aye; Fried, Aye; Schreier, Aye; Fisher, Aye;
Motion: Passes

Motion/Second: Jensen /Schreier to return to Open Session at 11:07 a.m.
Roll Call Vote: Jensen, Aye; Holewinski, Aye; Fried, Aye; Schreier, Aye; Fisher, Aye;
Motion: Passes

Announcement: Chairman Fried announced that while in closed session no Motions were made
and no was action taken.

Motion/Second: Holewinski/Jensen to approve the Telecommunicator position starting at wage
scale step 8 with 9 years PTO and on January 15t moving to a step 9. All “Aye”; Motion passes.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chairman Fried adjourned the meeting at 11:09 a.m.







Agenda

e
NFRPOWOONOUIRWNE

13

RESOLUTION #
General Code of Oneida County, Wisconsin
Ordinance Amendment #

Resolution to Update Chapter 1, County Treasurer, Auditor/Finance Director,
Investment Policy, and Chapter 3, Local Government Pooled Investment Fund,
Financial Policies and Procedures

Ordinance Amendment Offered by the Supervisors of the Executive Committee.
Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, Oneida County Code Chapter 1, County Treasurer, Auditor/Finance Director,
Investment Policy, and Chapter 3, Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, Financial Policies
and Procedures, has sections needing to be updated due to conflicts in language within County
Code, outdated statutory references; and to reflect current practice, procedures and practices;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE ONEIDA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DOES ORDAIN
AS FOLLWS:

Section 1. Any existing ordinances, codes, resolutions, or portions thereof in conflict with this
ordinance shall be and hereby are repealed as far as any conflicts exists.

Section 2. The ordinance shall take effect the day after passage and publication as required
by law.

Section 3. If any claims, provisions or portions of this ordinance are adjudged unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected
thereby.

Section 4. Section 1.13 County Treasurer, 1.27 Auditor/Finance Director, 1.38 Investment
Policy, 3.03 Local Government Pooled Investment Fund, and 3.12 Financial Policies and
Procedures of the General Code of Oneida County, Wisconsin are amended as follows [additions
noted by underline, deletions noted by strikethrough]:

§ 1.13. County Treasurer.

(1) Applicable Statutes. See §8 59.25, 59.61 and 59.62 and-59-25(1), 59.25(3)-and-59-61(3);
Wis. Stats.

(2) Duties. The County Treasurer shall perform all duties required of him by law including, but
not limited to 88 59.25.

(3) Bond. Oneida County shall execute and provide bond as prescribed by § 59.21(1)(b), Wis.
Stats.

(4) Property Tax Collection. The County Treasurer shall collect and disburse taxes in the

manner prescrlbed in Ch 74 WIS Stats Further—eﬂ—epbeiere—me—da{e—presenbed—m—me

by—the—preper—treasurer—Further the County Treasurer shaII admlnlster the prowsmns of

§ 3-19 of this Code-adepting-5-74-485-Wis-Stats.

(5) Land Sold for Taxes. The County Treasurer shall proceed in the manner prescribed in Ch.
75, Wis. Stats. The County Treasurer shall foreclose tax liens in the manner prescribed in
§75-521Wis-Stats. § 3 of this Code



https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33791971,33791859#33791859
https://ecode360.com/print/33791860#33791860
https://ecode360.com/print/33791861#33791861
https://ecode360.com/print/33791862#33791862
https://ecode360.com/print/33791863#33791863
https://ecode360.com/print/33792865#33792865
https://ecode360.com/print/33791864#33791864
https://ecode360.com/print/33792865#33792865

Agenda

49
50
o1
52
53
o4
95
56
57

58

59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

80

81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

(6) Retention of Records. The County Treasurer shall comply with applicable §59:52(6)(#);
&@—%&n@l—&%—and—w&h—the—@eumy records retention statues and ordinances. Ordinrance;

(7) Deposit of Public Monies. To comply with § 59.61, the County Treasurer shall prepare a
Resolution, to be acted upon by the County Board at their annual November meeting,
designating public depositories. The County Treasurer shall proceed in the manner prescribed
in 8 34.05, Wis. Stats., and shall be limited as to liability as defined in § 34.06, Wis. Stats.

8 1.27. Auditor/Finance Director.

(1) The County Auditor/Finance Director is responsible for overall financial management,
accounting, financial reporting, budgeting and internal auditing of the County. This position
provides financial reports, analysis and advice to the County Board and employees. The
department is responsible for processing accounting records, accounts payable, central
purchasing, payroll and fringe benefits payments. The County Auditor/Finance Director is one of
the team of Risk Managers. In addition, the Auditor/Finance Director is charged with reviewing
all resolutions/ordinance amendments that are submitted to the County Clerk to ensure that a
proper fiscal impact report is attached when necessary.

(2) Investment Authority. Under § 59.62, Wis. Stats., the County Board hereby delegates to the
County Auditor/Finance Director the authority to invest County funds;8-66-04(2) Wis-—Stats—
and-8-3-18-of this- General- Code; with the following restrictions: An monthly investment report

shall be presented to the Executlve Committee. periodically-ata-meeting-frequency-as

(3) Bond. Oneida County shall execute and provide bond as prescribed by 8 59.21(1)(b), Wis.

Stats.

§ 1.38. Investment Policy.

(1) Introduction. The timely deposit and investment of public monies is an important and integral
part of any cash management program. This statement of policy is intended for the use and
guidance of the designated County official or officials with investment authority and any
investment advisers to whom County officials have delegated investment authority as
defined in § 66.0603(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes. This investment policy shall be reviewed
annually by the County investment officer and the Finanece-and-tnasurance-Executive
Committee. The Finance-and-hsurance-Executive Committee shall approve any
recommended changes, and the necessary resolution to modify texisting-peticy 8§ 1.38. of
this Code shall be presented to the Oneida County Board for its action.

(2) StatementofPurpoese Guidelines. The purpose of this investment policy is to establish
guidelines for investments that are broad enough to allow the investment officer to function
properly within the parameters of responsibility and authority. It is also intended to be
specific enough to establish a prudent set of basic procedures to assure that investment
assets are adequately safeguarded.

(3) Goals and Obijectives.


https://ecode360.com/print/33791865#33791865
https://ecode360.com/print/33791866#33791866
https://ecode360.com/print/33791858#33791858
https://ecode360.com/print/33791976#33791976
https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33791971#33791971
https://ecode360.com/print/33791972#33791972
https://ecode360.com/print/33791973#33791973
https://ecode360.com/print/33792827#33792827
https://ecode360.com/print/33791976#33791976
https://ecode360.com/print/33791862#33791862
https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33792075#33792075

Agenda

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(a) The primary objectives of Oneida County investment activities shall be the following in
order of importance:
1. Safety. The safety of the principal shall be the foremost objective.
2. Liquidity. Funds shall be invested to provide sufficient liquidity to meet all reasonably
anticipated disbursement cash-flow requirements; and
3. Yield. Funds shall be invested to maximize return consistent with the objectives in
Iltems 1 and 2 and other limitations described in this policy.
Delegation of Authority.
(a) Pursuant to 88 59.62(1)}{2) and 59.25{3)}(s} of the Wisconsin Statutes and to
8 1.13(6){a)b) and § 1.27 of the Oneida County Code, the authority to invest and reinvest
monies of Oneida County, to sell or exchange securities so purchased and-to-provideforthe
safekeeping-of such-securities is delegated to the County Auditor/Finance Director, and
further to provide for the safekeeping of such securities, is delegated to the County
Treasurer.
(b) The Auditor/Finance Director or his/her designee shall have the authority to direet
request the Treasurer to transfer funds between accounts established for investment
purposes.
(c) As-defined-in-8-66-0603(2)-of- Wisconsin-Statutes;-Subject to approval by the Executive
Committee, the Auditor/Finance Director may delegate investment authority for any funds
not immediately needed to a state or national bank—erbank, or trust company, or registered
investment advisor which is authorized to transact business in the State.
Prudence Required. The standard of prudence will apply to all investments made on behalf
of the County in accordance with the ' prudent person ruIe" of § 881.01 of the Wisconsin

#unds—rn—and other deposrtorres def|ned in 8 59 61(3) of the Wrsconsrn Statutes shaII be
selected in accordance with 8§ 3.12 (7) — (10).

Deposrtory CoIIateraIrzatron Requwements Wth—the—passage—ef—W—rseensm—Aet—zé—eﬁeeWe

$650,000; including demand dep03|ts time deposits, and certificates of deposit_must be
subject to Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or National Credit Union

Administration (NCUA) coverage in addition to State of Wisconsin 820.124(1)(a) coverage
for the payment of losses of public deposits. Deposits in excess of said coverages must be
100% collateralized as to principal and accrued interest with securities that are obligations of
the U.S. Government or its agencies that are fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government.
Securities held as collateral shall be delivered for safekeeping to a custodial bank selected
by Oneida County. Securities held as collateral at the custodial bank will be marked to



https://ecode360.com/print/33792084#33792084
https://ecode360.com/print/33792085#33792085
https://ecode360.com/print/33792086#33792086

Agenda

146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195

market at least monthly, with a monthly statement sent to the trvestment Officer-County
Treasurer detailing all holdings.

Permitted Investments.

(a) All mvestments will be made i in accordance with 8 66. 0603 of the Wlsconsm Statutes

Diversification. Total holdings of any one issuer may not exceed 10% of the market value of
the portfolio at the time of purchase, with the exception of U.S. Government issues and
issues of U.S. Government agencies fully guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the
U.S. Government.

(20) Maturities. Maturities of individual securities must be in compliance with § 66.0603 of

Wlsconsm Statutes
(a) & ' &
Statutes—Per this sectlon t|me dep03|ts may not exceed three years, and debt that is not
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the Federal Government or its Agencies, or a
Wisconsin municipality must have a maturity not more than seven years. Maturities may be
further restricted by guidelines set forth below.

(b) No individual issue shall exceed five year(s) in maturity from the date of purchase.

(c) Floating rate securities, the coupons of which adjust to market interest rates with a
minimum frequency of four times annually, shall at a minimum be subject to the maturity

constraints outlined in Item “A" (a)above.

(11) Liquidity. All securities must be readily marketable to ensure adequate portfolio liquidity.
(12) Reporting.

(a) Investment Advisers and Custodians. All investment advisers and custodians retained by
the County will provide detailed monthly statements to the County Treasurer
Auditor/Finance Director. Such reports will contain at a minimum a description of each
security including units held, cost, market value and current yield as well as a detailed list,
by date, of all transactions executed during the period.
(b) Auditor/Finance Director. It will be the responsibility of the Auditor/Finance Director to
establish and maintain records and accounts to:

1. Provide necessary internal controls to achieve reliable financial reporting, reduce the
risk of error or inappropriate action, and ensure compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.



https://ecode360.com/print/33792091#33792091
https://ecode360.com/print/33792092#33792092
https://ecode360.com/print/33792093#33792093
https://ecode360.com/print/33792094#33792094
https://ecode360.com/print/33792095#33792095
https://ecode360.com/print/33792096#33792096
https://ecode360.com/print/33792097#33792097
https://ecode360.com/print/33792098#33792098
https://ecode360.com/print/33792101#33792101
https://ecode360.com/print/33792102#33792102
https://ecode360.com/print/33792103#33792103
https://ecode360.com/print/33792106#33792106
https://ecode360.com/print/33792107#33792107
https://ecode360.com/print/33792108#33792108

Agenda

196
197
198
199
200
201
202

203

204

205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216

2. Detail investments as to purchase date, cost, maturity and interest rate.
3. Maintain other records that may be required to accurately reflect all investment
transactions.

(13) Jlnvestments.} The Auditor/Finance Director shall-whenreguested; make a report on
County investments to the Oneida County Firance-and-surance-Executive Committee. In
addition, the Auditor/Finance Director shall include a description of the County's investment
Portfolio as part of his/her annual audit report to the County Board of Supervisors.

8 3.03. Local Government PoolednvestmentFund. Reserved

8 3.12. Financial Policies and Procedures.

[Amended by Res. No. 117-2008]

(1) All deposits of public funds shall be made daily on each business day only at one of the
public depositories listed on the annual resolution adopted by the County Board at its annual
meeting.

(2) The County Treasurer shall have the authority to make all payments to the County which are
short $4 or less. The Treasurer shall have the authority to voucher from the General Fund funds
needed to accomplish the payment of these incidental shortages. The Treasurer shall maintain
an accurate written record concerning all such transactions and shall submit the voucher to the
Finance and Insurance Committee for review and approval.

[Amended by Res. No. 41-2016; 1-18-2022 by Res. No. 13-2022, effective 2-1-2022]

(3) The County Treasurer and Auditor/Finance Director shall abide by the Oneida County

Investment Policy pursuant to 8§ 1.38 of this Code adepted-by-the Board-on-the 20th-day-of

that-date.

(4) The Treasurer shall prepare and maintain a written daily receipt-disbursement form,

including updated daily balances for checking accounts.

[Amended by Res. No. 01-2009]
Dire



https://ecode360.com/print/33792109#33792109
https://ecode360.com/print/33792110#33792110
https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33792652,33792785#33792652
https://ecode360.com/print/33792653#33792653
https://ecode360.com/print/33792654#33792654
https://ecode360.com/print/33792655#33792655
https://ecode360.com/print/33792656#33792656
https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33792652,33792785#33792785
https://ecode360.com/print/33792786#33792786
https://ecode360.com/print/33792787#33792787
https://ecode360.com/print/33792788#33792788
https://ecode360.com/print/33792789#33792789
https://ecode360.com/print/33792790#33792790
https://ecode360.com/print/33792791#33792791

Agenda

243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
2172
273
274
275
276
277
2178
279
280
281
282
283
284

285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292

(5) The AuditerfFinance-DBirector County Treasurer shall, under the direction of the Firanee-and
tasurance-Executive Committee, develop specifications for the annual placement of any
checking accounts the County may have with qualified financial institutions located in the
County. The Finahee-Executive Committee may request the assistance of other County
employees in the development of these specifications.

o N A a

Novembermeeting-

(6) All public depositories shall have been approved as qualified to become a public depository
by the Commissioner of Credit Unions if the depository is a credit union chartered under Ch.
186, Wis. Stats., the Administrator of Federal Credit Unions if the depository is a federally
chartered credit union, the Commissioner of Banking if the depository is a bank, savings and
trust company or mutual savings bank, or by the Commissioner of Savings and Loan if the
depository is a savings and loan association.

(7) The Finance-Executive Committee shall develop and maintain specifications for banking,
financial and depository services and shal-may direct the County Treasurer to solicit and accept
bids and enter into contracts in behalf of the County for such banking, financial and depository
services which it determines are in the best interests of the County.

(8) Investment of County Funds by County Auditor/Finance Director. The County
Auditor/Finance Director is hereby designated the Oneida County investment officer and, as
such, is authorized to invest County funds with the same authority and in the same manner in
which they could be invested by the County Board pursuant to § 1.27 of this Code. §66-04(2);

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority = 3/4 Majority =
The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes No as reviewed
by the Corporation Counsel, , Date:

Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5 day of
November 2025.

Consent Agenda Item: YES NO
Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:
Included in Aye Nay Abstain
Resolution | | | | | |
I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried

[ ] wa N



https://ecode360.com/print/33792792#33792792
https://ecode360.com/print/33792793#33792793
https://ecode360.com/print/33792794#33792794
https://ecode360.com/print/33792795#33792795
https://ecode360.com/print/33792796#33792796

Agenda

293 Supervisor Scott Holewinski

294
295 L]

296 Supervisor Robb Jensen

297
298 L] L

299 Supervisor Diana Harris

300
301 L]

302 Supervisor Steven Schreier

303
304 L]

305 Supervisor Russ Fisher

306
307 L]

308 Supervisor Connor Showalter
309

310

311

312 Ayes

313

314 Nays

315

316 Absent

317

318 Abstain

319

320 Adopted

321

g%% by the County Board of Supervisors this 121" day of November, 2025.
324 Defeated

325

326

327

328 Tracy Hartman, County Clerk Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair



Agenda

OCO~NOOUTRWNEF

RESOLUTION #
General Code of Oneida County, Wisconsin
Ordinance Amendment #

Resolution to Update Chapter 3, Accounts Receivable
Ordinance Amendment Offered by the Supervisors of the Executive Committee.
Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, Oneida County Code Chapter 3, Accounts Receivable, has sections needing to
be updated due to outdated computerized system references and changes procedures and
policies; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE ONEIDA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DOES ORDAIN
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Any existing ordinances, codes, resolutions, or portions thereof in conflict with this
ordinance shall be and hereby are repealed as far as any conflicts exists.

Section 2. The ordinance shall take effect the day after passage and publication as required
by law.

Section 3. If any claims, provisions or portions of this ordinance are adjudged unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected
thereby.

Section 4. Section 3.18 Accounts Receivables Policies of the General Code of Oneida County,
Wisconsin is amended as follows [additions noted by underline, deletions noted by strikethroughl:

8 3.18. Accounts Receivable Policies.

(1) Purpose and Definitions. To set forth gU|deI|nes for County departments adm|n|strat|on of
accounts recelvable 3 A ,

(a) Certain services are prowded in advance of payment resulting in an accounts receivable,
this section sets forth accounts receivables controls and authority.

(b) Appropriate control shall be followed to ensure proper handling, reconciliation,
accounting, fraud prevention, reporting and adherence to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP).

(c) This section applies to all accounts receivables of the county unless otherwise governed
by separate statute or requlation such as real estate taxes, special assessments and
foreclosures; Clerk of Court debts via the State of Wisconsin Circuit Court
System; citations issued per Oneida County Code or State of Wisconsin Statue; and,
other court ordered fines and fees.



https://ecode360.com/print/ON3970?guid=33792827#33792827
https://ecode360.com/print/33792828#33792828
https://ecode360.com/print/33792829#33792829

Agenda

48

49

50 (a) The use of the County’s integrated accounts receivables system shall be used to invoice
51 customers for balances owed when practical.

52 1. Exception. Due to the nature of certain services provided, other specialized software
53 may be used. For any customer invoice not billed via the County’s integrated

54 accounts receivable system, the following information must be included on any

55 customer invoice or on an accompanying attachment: Sequential Invoice Number,
56 Customer Name, Customer Address, Customer Telephone Number, Invoice Date,
57 Payment Due Date, Description of Service Provided, Total Amount Due for Service
58 Provided.

59 (b) Each county department is responsible for its own collections, with any accounts 180
60 days or older deemed as a delinguent account unless terms are otherwise agreed upon
61 in writing prior to services being provided.

62 (c) Corporation Counsel may be engaged to assist in collections of delinguent accounts in
63 accordance with any and all debt collection laws.

64 (d) Subject to Committee of Jurisdiction approval, third party collection agencies and / or the
65 State of Wisconsin debt collection program may be used to assist in collections of

66 delinquent accounts in accordance with any and all debt collection laws.

67

68

69

70

71

12

73 (a) At least annually, but no later than October 31 each year, each department with

74 outstanding receivables will undertake an assessment of accounts deemed to be uncollectable.
75 1. Balances of accounts that may be approved by the Department Head as

76 uncollectable:

77 a. Balances of accounts more than 2-years old and under $4.

78 b. Balances of accounts with any dollar amount where the debtor has died and
79 there is no guarantor, successor or estate.

80 c. Balances of accounts discharged in bankruptcy.

81 d. Balances of accounts with any dollar amount where the debtor is a legal entity
82 separate and distinct from its owners that has been dissolved, and has no

83 guarantor or Successor.

84 2. Balances of accounts may be determined by the Committee of Jurisdiction as

85 uncollectable that do not qualify as uncollectable as set out in subsection 1 above.

86

87 (b) Accounts that are determined as uncollectable shall be written-off as follows:

88 1. Ifinvoiced in the county’s integrated accounts receivable system, uncollectable

89 accounts shall be submitted to the Finance Director for removal no later than

90 November 30" of each year.

91

92 2. Ifinvoiced from specialized software, a detailed ledger for proper recording to the
93 county’s accounting system shall be provided to the Finance Director no later than



https://ecode360.com/print/33792830#33792830

Agenda

November 30™ of each year and then removed from the specialized software by the
Department Head by the end of the year.

. 3 ou 4 A 5 /a H ality -_Reporting.

(a) Departments shall report all outstanding accounts receivables balances as of October
31 to the appropriate Committee of Jurisdiction in November, or if the committee does
not meet monthly, at the first available, reqularly scheduled meeting following the
invoicing of balance due.

(b) Departments shall provide a detailed ledger of all outstanding balances due as of
December 31% of the year to the Finance Director, and such reports shall be subject to
annual auditing by the Finance Director.



https://ecode360.com/print/33792831#33792831
https://ecode360.com/print/33792832#33792832
https://ecode360.com/print/33792833#33792833
https://ecode360.com/print/33792834#33792834
https://ecode360.com/print/33792835#33792835
https://ecode360.com/print/33792836#33792836
https://ecode360.com/print/33792837#33792837
https://ecode360.com/print/33792838#33792838
https://ecode360.com/print/33792839#33792839
https://ecode360.com/print/33792840#33792840
https://ecode360.com/print/33792841#33792841
https://ecode360.com/print/33792842#33792842

Agenda

151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority =

The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes
by the Corporation Counsel,

3/4 Majority =

No

, Date:

as reviewed


https://ecode360.com/print/33792843#33792843
https://ecode360.com/print/33792844#33792844
https://ecode360.com/print/33792845#33792845
https://ecode360.com/print/33792846#33792846
https://ecode360.com/print/33792847#33792847
https://ecode360.com/print/33792848#33792848
https://ecode360.com/print/33792849#33792849
https://ecode360.com/print/33792850#33792850
https://ecode360.com/print/33792851#33792851
https://ecode360.com/print/33792852#33792852
https://ecode360.com/print/33792853#33792853
https://ecode360.com/print/33792854#33792854
https://ecode360.com/print/33792855#33792855
https://ecode360.com/print/33792856#33792856
https://ecode360.com/print/33792857#33792857
https://ecode360.com/print/33792858#33792858
https://ecode360.com/print/33792859#33792859
https://ecode360.com/print/33792860#33792860
https://ecode360.com/print/33792861#33792861
https://ecode360.com/print/33792862#33792862
https://ecode360.com/print/33792863#33792863
https://ecode360.com/print/33792864#33792864

Agenda

193 Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5th day of
194 November 2025.

195

196 Consent Agenda Item: YES NO

197

198

199 Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:
200
201 Included in Aye  Nay Abstain
202 Resolution
203 L L) L
%8% I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried

L L

206 [ | na

207 Supervisor Scott Holewinski
208
209 N
%%&) Supervisor Robb Jensen

212 (1 [ L
213 Supervisor Diana Harris

214
215 i
216 Supervisor Steven Schreier

217
218 i
219 Supervisor Russ Fisher

220

221 i
222 Supervisor Connor Showalter

223

224

225

226 Ayes

227

228 Nays

229

230 Absent

231

232 Abstain

233

234 Adopted

235

%gg by the County Board of Supervisors this 12" day of November, 2025.

238 Defeated

239

240

241

242 Tracy Hartman, County Clerk Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair




Agenda

Oneida County Internal Control Narrative

Fund Balance Accounting
For the Year Ended December 31, 2025
Draft 10/27/2025

General. Compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as defined
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) guides the County's
preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

Purpose. GASB establishes five fund balance classifications including non-spendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. For budgeting and planning purposes,
the county earmarks a portion of the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds as continuing appropriations. This narrative assist staff in
defining the process for earmarking unrestricted fund balance for the purposes of
continuing appropriations.

Appropriate Categories to Earmark as Continuing Appropriations.

e County Board Resolution. The County Board may adopt a Resolution to set-aside
fund balances for budget stabilization (rainy day) or other policy purposes.

e Donations, Gifts or Grants. Contributions in cash from donations, gifts or grants
received in the current year but are unexpended but may be retained for
intended purposes in a future year before any actual cash outflow occurs.

e Sale of Asset. A department may sell a vehicle, equipment or other asset in the
current year and earmark those funds in a future year for a replacement asset in
the same or similar category.

e Encumbrance. An encumbrance is a commitment to expend funds for specific
future expenditures and acts as a reservation on an appropriation by
designating the fund balance from the current year for a defined purpose in a
future year before any actual cash outflow occurs.

e Surplus Budget. Projects or programs that are underspent compared to
the specific line item budget in the year initially budgeted may be carried
forward to future years expenditures for the same or similar purpose.

Responsible Parties. Individual Department Heads or their designee are responsible
for updating annual continuing appropriations balance requests. The Finance
Director is responsible for reporting all fund balances accurately in the County’s
ACFR.

Year-End Process. After year-end, the Finance Director will provide Department
Heads with a form to update continuing appropriation balances, which must be



Agenda

returned to the Finance Director no later than March 15 following year end. The
information prepared by the Department Head (or designee) must include detailed
and specific information including narrative explanations, general ledger coding and
other transactional identification sufficient to audit the requests.

The Finance Director will review the requests for completeness and accuracy, and
close changes to the continuing appropriations requests. The Finance Director
submits a report to the Executive Committee of the County Board at the first
meeting in April. Updates to the requests are made according to feedback provided
by the Executive Committee, and the Finance Director then makes journal entries to
update the general ledger.

Once all journal entries are complete, the Finance Director will reconcile all fund
balances to ensure compliance with GASB.



Agenda

OCO~NOOITRWNEF

RESOLUTION #

Resolution to Approve Alteration of Supervisory District Boundary Resulting from an
Annexation to the City of Rhinelander

Resolution approved for presentation to the Oneida County Board by the Supervisors of the
Executive Committee

Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Oneida County Board of Supervisors adopted a ten-year
Supervisory District Plan creating County Supervisory Districts, Municipal Alderman Districts and
Election Wards following the 2020 Census; and

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. 859.10(3)(c) allows a county board, in its discretion, to alter the
boundaries of supervisory districts based on annexations that occur after the adoption of the ten-
year supervisory district plan, as long as the number of supervisory districts does not change; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rhinelander completed an annexation of parcel number RH-9015-
0602, RH-9015-0603, RH-9015-0601, RH-9015-0605, RH-9015-0604, RH-9015-0608, RH-9015-
0606, RH-9015-0607, RH-9015-0609 and RH-9015-0610 on 08/15/2022, of nine parcels of
approximately 416.3 acres total; and

WHEREAS, a map of the annexed parcels, along with a copy of the annexation ordinance,
has been filed with the Oneida County Clerk and is attached; and

WHEREAS, the parcels annexed by the City of Rhinelander are a part of County
Supervisory District 11 within Ward 03 in the Town of Crescent; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to move the annexed parcel into County Supervisory District
03 in the City of Rhinelander and alter the two affected District boundaries accordingly; and

WHEREAS, the population of the annexed parcels is zero (0) residents, which
substantially maintains the original populations of the affected districts; and

WHEREAS, this resolution does not change the number of supervisory districts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Board of Supervisors in
session this 12" day of November, 2025, that the boundaries of Supervisory Districts 03 and 11
are hereby altered by moving the annexed parcels of land attached hereto from County
Supervisory District 11 to County Supervisory District 03 and within Ward 14 in the City of
Rhinelander, as shown on the attached document.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Oneida County Clerk is hereby directed to
forward all notices required under Chapter 59 of the Wisconsin Statutes to the Secretary of
State for the purpose of advising that office of said Supervisory District boundary changes.

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority = 3/4 Majority =



Agenda

51 The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes No as reviewed
52 by the Corporation Counsel, , Date:

53

54

55 Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5" day of
56 November, 2025.

S57

58 Consent Agenda Item: YES NO

59

60

61

62 Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:

63

64 Included in Aye  Nay Abstain
65 Resolution | | | | | |

66
gg I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried
HEnE

69 [ ] na

70 Supervisor Scott Holewinski
71
72 N

73 Supervisor Diana Harris

75 O

76 Supervisor Connor Showalter
77
78 il
79 Supervisor Robb Jensen

80

81 L) L
82 Supervisor Steven Schreier

83
84 L) L
85 Supervisor Russ Fisher

86

87

88 Ayes

89

90 Nays

91

92 Absent

93

94 Abstain

95

96 Adopted

97

88 by the County Board of Supervisors this 12th day of November, 2025.

100 Defeated




Agenda

101
102
103
104
105

Tracy Hartman, County Clerk

Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair



o l_ ___________

1

I =2

s ]

5

g 0

=

Il 360809
__——1!——-

FOXQVALLEY, ANDILAKE SUPERIOR {o & = 2% \\ o = UsH 8
S g 1 \ \ei“ﬁueﬂa ——————
\0

F i 35;::3“1‘_0_:

rGO'Ir Course Rd

|

Chas Denton Ln =

|
1
i
]
1
[
I

+_

360811

e -
e

]
]
]
I s
]
]
!
] L
3 RHINELANDERY E
1
l =S
Ll
=
360815 i T YRS I wieies
Linnaea Newman
T7:15-499-4408
—@ + @
1
1 &
. N &
i <ﬁf- :_’.‘r
1 O
] '\“ Ll_t
i %)
g i 2
1 & g
\ _ﬂ_\q'," o
i & g
. \ & *
360821 U :
an p, .
360823
11 CRESCENT i . e AT IR _,_3_698432_ ___________________________
Rob/Jensen S 5 '
920-602-0561 fig 1
EMMA' LAKE § A ;
‘k\'}\*- i
&> 1
|
1
|
1
I
i 1
00.050.1 0.2 0.3 0.4

an
Y

Oneida County GIS Map
Oneida County, Wisconsin

™™ s ™™ s 11
This map is courtesy of the Oneida County Land Information
office and is a general sketch of areas in Oneida County. It

should not be used to represent surveys of property. See
original source documents for more information.



schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Line


Agenda

Document Number

/:}ﬂ(\CXO\‘HO N

Document Title

DOCH# 836414

Recorded on
Aug 15, 2022 02:14 PM

document.

THIS PAGE IS PART OF THIS LEGAL DOCUMENT - DO NOT REMOVE.

WRDA Rev. 12/22/2010

This information must be completed by submitter: document title, name & return address, and PIN (if required). Other information such as
the granting clause, legal description, etc., may be placed on this first page of the document or may be placed on additional pages of the

/9&74 Lomsiron

KYLE J FRANSON
REGISTER OF DEEDS
ONEIDA COUNTY, Wi

Fee Amount: $30.00

Pages: 6

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

RWinclondder CHH He )
j35 S Siwas sk

Ruinclade WI Sl

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)




Agenda

CITY OF RHINELANDER

City Clerk’s Office Home of the Hodag

CERTIFICATE OF ANNEXATION

I, AUSTYN T ZARDA, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
ONEIDA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, do hereby certify that the attached described

territory was detached from the Town of Crescent, Oneida County, Wisconsin pursuant

to Section 66.0223, Wisconsin Statutes, as adopted by ordinance by the Rhinelander

Common Council on Monday, May 9th, 2022. 1 do hereby further certify that the area

annexed contains (0) in population and zero (0) alcoholic beverage license.

Org:

CC:

Stade of WE NS

Dated this 10th Day of June 2022

Auatyn Jards /WW

Austynd Za#da, City Clerk

City of Rhinelander
Oneida County, Wisconsin +
ACKronledgrmen
Secretary of State

Register of Deeds, Oneida County, WI. PEFSOHC\H cange &m %;k-\}fl’gﬁ
WPSC, Real Estate Agent, Green Bay, Wl/Local Offi ce Qm\\‘)e mmtg

School District of Rhinelander, Secretary, Rhinelander, WI. f&"‘
City Assessor/Town Assessor ’l’O M ‘Q}QOW m
Wisconsin Depart of Revenue, Excise Tax Bureau, Madlson WI m \/\/V‘)O

Rhinelander Police Dept/Oneida County Sheriff's Dept \ HﬁCQ
Rhinelander Fire Dept/County Fire Department exec glhﬁ
Oneida County Land Information Office — Survey File_flquemi ” & no

Eagle Waste
N

Rhinelander Public Works D?gt).

: JENNA JTRTR:
City Hallcmn‘ O{' Notary Public Telephone (715) 365-8600 ext #1

135 S. Stevens St.

Fax (715) 365-8630

Rhinelander WI 54501 O{\Q\dcy\ State of Wisconsin Email: azarda@rhinelandercityhall.org

eS
MY OMMISAON DQANES



Agenda

City of Rhinelander - Ordinance 2022-6

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
WISCONSIN PURSUANT TO WISCONSIN STATUTE 66.0217

The Common Council of the City of Rhinelander does ordain as follows:

Territory Annexed: In accordance with Wis. Stats 66.0217 and upon recommendation of the City of Rhinelander Planning
Commission, annexation of the following property, more particularly described below, located in the Town of Crescent,
Oneida County, Wisconsin, is annexed to the City of Rhinelander.

Description: CR-202, CR-206, CR-207, CR-208, CR-209, CR-210, CR-211, CR-213, CR-214, and CR-283. The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4,
SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4,
Gov't Lot 1, Gov't Lot 2, Section 15, and NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 22, all in Township 36 North, Range 8 East, Town of Crescent,
Oneida County, Wisconsin.

Effect of Annexation: For and after the date of this ordinance the territory described above shall be part of the City of
Rhinelander for any and all purposes provided by law and all persons coming or residing within such territory shall be subject
to ordinances, rules and regulations governing the City of Rhinelander.

Zoning Classification: As recommended by the Planning Commission, the territory annexed to the City of Rhinelander by this
ordinance is designated as CR (Conservation & Recreation) subject to the zoning restrictions related to such zoning
classification in the City of Rhinelander.

Severability: If any provision of this Ordinance is invalid or constitutional, or the application of this ordinance to any person
or circumstances is invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions of
applications of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional provision of applications.

Effective Date: This Ordinance amendment shall become effective upon passage and publication.

This ordinance amendment was _X_passed ___ rejected by vote of the Rhinelander City Council __ 8 aye 0 nays.

CERTIFICATE:
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, Austyn Zarda, City Clerk of the City of Rhinelander, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance
was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Rhinelander, held at City Hall
on the da of May 2022 at 6:00 P.M.

Actnowl e merﬂ"
watlyn Jarda
P€Y5C)m re ne s IZTY‘AustyrﬂZaréﬁ City Clerk
U\o A usf S dove rame Qg of Rhinlande JENNA JIRIK.

heida County, Wisconsin Notary Public
rﬁ(:r\ W 3—%@{ {QY\OV\I\%E@ State of Wisconsin

mswm\em and cxmow e e mQ

. Austyn Zdfda, City Cigrk - m\’\ LQY‘{\YY\SS[OO
1ISCONSIN
%q T %&\{T\%\%WQ(\Q A0 expires ape[2-




Agenda

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
The City of Rhinelander Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, May 3, 2022, at 5:00
P.M in the Meeting Room, City Hall, 135 S. Stevens Street, Rhinelander, WI 54501 to hear the following
request:

City of Rhinelander, 135 S Stevens Street, Rhinelander, WI 54501, owner of property located south of the
Rhinelander Golf Course (parcels CR-202, CR-206, CR-207, CR-208, CR-209, CR-210, CR-211, CR-213, CR-
214, and CR-283) is requesting an Annexation from the Town of Crescent to the City of Rhinelander and a Map
Amendment Rezone to C-R (Conservation & Recreation).

The property description is:

The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NE 1/4 of the
SW 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, Gov't Lot 1, Gov't Lot 2, Section 15, and NW 1/4 of the
NW 1/4, Section 22, all in Township 36 North, Range 8 East, Town of Crescent, Oneida County, Wisconsin.
Parcel Identification Numbers: CR-202, CR-206, CR-207, CR-208, CR-209, CR-210, CR-211, CR-213, CR-
214, and CR-283.

Anyone opposed to or in favor of this request may appear at this hearing.
T : R ' Y '

el
[

A LT yesun

Site of proposed

2 Annexation |
8 8 ]
\ @ / /
7
T 4 N /
/.V,/ AR i CRESCLNT / i
- . %_ '4._ ‘/’ PELILAN
X CRESCENT LAKE N, e |
By B /’ 4 e ks
: - \ @,
N o A -
wr® // & § Lakeview La
5""--— g,_____ N“'D‘ P gg i -\_Uthll'l/u' )
2T ! /
E % ’tﬂyqﬂl \: ¢ .- THanakeRn-\
& — o : -"CQ"Q" e !
! ’ 1’% | |[ Ari L]
| (9 o
Olivia Jopek
Assistant, Rhinelander Planning Commission
PUBLISH LEGAL:

April 19" & April 26, 2022

Please send publication statement to:
City of Rhinelander

135 S Stevens St

Rhinelander, WI 54501



Agenda

NW Comer

SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4,

NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4, SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, Gov't Lot 1,
Gov't Lot 2, Section 15, and NW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 22, All in Township 36 North,

Range 8 East, Town of Crescent, Oneida County, Wisconsin

( N 1/4 Comer
w Section 15 w Section 15
& 1 % Found Brass Mon. 2 | g Found Alum. Mon.
i Ed
§ - N AT E,
589"1420" E §891420" E = Neooe
1362.65 v 1362.34 i 1365.
| |
| |
! ! =
I
w SWINW 5! SEINW - SWINE gl
ol 85 < sl
8la 12 Ko 12
_3.% °8'ﬂ o3& |
5] A E:“ ;l“ w
z w
| ! E 1/4 Comer
W 1/4 Comer | i Section 15
Section 15 ! | .Found.Z' P
Found Brass Mon. l ) 3 W S 88°2553" W
! S 88°25'
ses2ss3wW_ 4 SBex W <
Se82F5FW_ A AT ¢ 1337.09
FTT T T T 1354.04' ‘?* 1354.04 I, 1337.0¢'
i
| NEI/SW ;
!
€
| L I k]
NWISW . Lot1 N NWISE o 2
w > I &lo
tle == Approx. 22 .
7 & 5% o8 8 g 3
2 =% 416.3acres = 8 i
z | (lndudlng approx. 26.5 ecres ! =
j of flooded lowland ajacent to I S
| I:oon Lake) ! 3
| : n.b N\ ( (-]
O | %
B . o
_NBIIBOTTE__ ___ N MNBgWOTE | NBO330'E b
____ 1346.61° -+ : 1344.93 ’? 1357.40 £
| L w 2
| R !
| 1% i i
| : I
SWISW . GovtLot2 . Gov'tLot 1 s
L Al N
'-'z; 3::4‘ -~ b 4"\4.‘\_. uJ: z §'
1] 218" 7 Flooded . T 2B Llo g
£ 1 Sig—" |« Lopand ¥ “Rig gl &
gl8 s iy, o TRg 32
z & L ow 2w g -
! \ b w | Flooded.,
' * ¥ 7 Lowsnd . N 46°30'06" W
S’ T ey S S -
. ion 15 " oy ion
Found Brass Mon. Section 15 | Found Brass Capr., | 96.00 S 88°3000" W J 75.90 Found Alum. Mon.
. _SeYorwse 5 89°0813" E - Yseso0 ' / geuz). 19782
1338.68 ! 133643
Section 22 N 89°20'56" W
Flooded
Lowland
2l J-  LEGEND
5 g NWINW gl O Set 1° X 24" Iron Pipe
N N Weighing min. 1.13
2 ® f‘ b.fin.g. SCALE
® Found 1" tron Pipe 1" =500
@ Found 3" Iron Pipe { ! ]
@ Found 1° lron Pipe 50 750 1000
W/Ripco Cap
N 89°5001° W & Calculated Position NORTH COAST SURVETING
=z 137282 1715 MELODY LANE
gj 3 @ Found PLS Comer RHINELANDER, W1 5460
o 1 Monument as described 5-490-0
RS NORTHCOASTSURVEYING.COM
% | N W1/4 comer |, Charles L. Oteinik, Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Wisconsin, heraby certify:
21 Section 22 that | have surveyed and mapped the parcel shown hereon; that said survey and map ara Boundary Survey for:
Found Brass Mon, oorrea to the best of my knowledge and belief; that | have complied with the applicable City of Rhineland
s of ite@'A—E 7 of 7nsm Administrative Code i completion thereof. ity Inelander
L I/-9-21 Grawng#  Dals — DrEfdby |
ChaﬂasL Oleinik, PLS Date 2134 11/912021 CLO




Agenda .

' DOC# 829874
State Bar of Wisconsin Form 3-2003 Recorded on
QUIT CLAIM DEED Jan 14, 2022 11:20 AM

Dacument Number Document Name / % . W

. r . KYLE J FRANSON

THIS DEED, made between Lee A. Swank, as individual property, REGISTER OF DEEDS

ONEIDA COUNTY, WI
Fee Amount: $30.00

("Grantor,” whether one or more), and City of Rhinelander, a Wisconsin Fee Exempt: 77.25(2G)
Pages: 1

t

municipality

("Grantee," whether one or more).
Grantor quit claims to Grantee the following described real estate, together with the

rents, profits, fixtures and other appurtenant interests, in Oneida Recording Area

County, State of Wisconsin ("Property") (if more space is needed, please attach addendum): [ Name and Remum Address
Attorney Steven Sorenson

von Briesen & Roper, s.c.

The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4, SW 1/4 of the ||55 Jewelers Park Drive, Suite 400
NE 1/4, NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4, NW 1/4 of |["eonam W1 s49%6

the SE 1/4, SW 1/4 of the SW 1/4, Gov't Lot 1, Gov't Lot 2,

Section 15, and NV}I 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 22, all in

Township 36 North, Range 8 East, Town of Crescent, Oneida

County WiSGOHSin This is not homestead property.
' v (is) (is not)

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

Parcel Identification Numbers: CR-202, CR-206, CR-207,
CR-208, CR-209, CR-210, CR-211, CR-213, CR-214, and

CR-283.
Daled O/ /p 7/2-—b LZ . For use if corporate grantor.
X Ad-é/ m/L (SEAL) (SEAL)
* Lee A. Swank *
! (SEAL) (SEAL)
* } ) *
AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Signature(s) Lee A. Swank STATE OF wISCONSIN )
) ss.
ONEIDA COUNTY)
Personally came before me on s

the above-named Lee A. Swank

T[TLE MEMBER STATE BAR O WISCONSIN

(Ifnot, to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing
authorized by Wis, Stat. § 706.06 ) instrument and acknowledged the same.

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: s

Attorney Steven R, Sorenson Notary Public, State of

Briesen & Roper, s.c. TS :
von “ries pen, 8. My commission (is permanent) (expires: )

(Signatures may be authenticated or acknewledged. Both are not necessary.)
NOTE: THIS I§ A STANDARD FORM. ANY MODIFICATION TO THIS FORM SHOULD BE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED.
QUIT CLAIM DEED ©2003 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM NO. 3-2003
*Type name below signatures. . INFO-PRO™ Legal Forms - (600)865-2021 » intoprofomms.com




Agenda

OCO~NOOITRWNEF

RESOLUTION #

Resolution to Approve Alteration of Supervisory District Boundary Resulting from an
Annexation to the City of Rhinelander

Resolution approved for presentation to the Oneida County Board by the Supervisors of the
Executive Committee

Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Oneida County Board of Supervisors adopted a ten-year
Supervisory District Plan creating County Supervisory Districts, Municipal Alderman Districts and
Election Wards following the 2020 Census; and

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. 859.10(3)(c) allows a county board, in its discretion, to alter the
boundaries of supervisory districts based on annexations that occur after the adoption of the ten-
year supervisory district plan, as long as the number of supervisory districts does not change; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rhinelander completed an annexation of parcel number RH-9108-
0810, RH-9108-0809 and RH-9108-0811 on 08/15/2022, of three parcels of approximately 2.53
acres total; and

WHEREAS, a map of the annexed parcels, along with a copy of the annexation ordinance,
has been filed with the Oneida County Clerk and is attached; and

WHEREAS, the parcels annexed by the City of Rhinelander are a part of County
Supervisory District 06 within Ward 03 in the Town of Pelican; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to move the annexed parcel into County Supervisory District
04 in the City of Rhinelander and alter the two affected District boundaries accordingly; and

WHEREAS, the population of the annexed parcels is zero (0) residents, which
substantially maintains the original populations of the affected districts; and

WHEREAS, this resolution does not change the number of supervisory districts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Board of Supervisors in
session this 12" day of November, 2025, that the boundaries of Supervisory Districts 04 and 06
are hereby altered by moving the annexed parcels of land attached hereto from County
Supervisory District 06 to County Supervisory District 04 and within Ward 10 in the City of
Rhinelander, as shown on the attached document.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Oneida County Clerk is hereby directed to
forward all notices required under Chapter 59 of the Wisconsin Statutes to the Secretary of
State for the purpose of advising that office of said Supervisory District boundary changes.

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority = 3/4 Majority =

The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes No as reviewed




Agenda

51 by the Corporation Counsel, , Date:

52

53

54 Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5" day of
55 November, 2025.

56

57 Consent Agenda Item: YES NO

58

59

60

g% Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:
63 Included in Aye  Nay Abstain
64 Resolution
65 L L) L
gg I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried

L L

68 | | wna

69 Supervisor Scott Holewinski
70

71 L] L L
;% Supervisor Diana Harris

74 (1 1 [
75 Supervisor Connor Showalter

76
77 il
78 Supervisor Robb Jensen

79
80 il
81 Supervisor Steven Schreier

82
83 i
84 Supervisor Russ Fisher

85

86

87 Ayes

88

89 Nays

90

91 Absent

92

93 Abstain

94

95 Adopted

96

gg by the County Board of Supervisors this 12th day of November, 2025.

99 Defeated

100




Agenda

101
102
103
104

Tracy Hartman, County Clerk

Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair



TSI

Bl 5 5|3 ~ RH-9108-0205 |
i : 2 o . L
L |z v ol °
o5 G2 "8~ JRH-9108-0223
:-CU.) ! 195.41" ; ey i
'gi o e RH-9108-0221 _
= |dlcavye Te
™ 193.78" o< 5
— 26.28" = | o
v :.325'-
o . 942.32"
. B87.64
1| e0.00
. g o 2, "
o~ J
S :
0 ok .0 I
= | Steven Sghreier
o &8 74536011064
691" . 5, ff? 45 ; Y
IS ¥ - ¥ o@a v IE’”), =,
S e 5060 R v
" %
5059 :
5055 U o S R N . AR sy
li._- . D :3: 7‘?)‘1, .'h :
5049 ; R N
50410 - om
) o080
06 4
Debbie!Condado g
=3B0-3776L - PELICAN RIVER

Oneida County GIS Map
Oneida County, Wisconsin

0 001 002 0.04 0.06
[l
This map is courtesy of the Oneida County Land Information
office and is a general sketch of areas in Oneida County. It
should not be used to represent surveys of property.



schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Line

schiamulera
Line


Agenda

DOC# 836412

' Recorded on
QN\CWUL‘O“ Aug 15, 2022 02:14 PM
Document Title

/%.W

KYLE J FRANSON
REGISTER OF DEEDS
ONEIDA COUNTY, WI

Fee Amount: $30.00

Pages: 14

Document Number

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

Ruaclaader City  Hall
2 8 Sfevas Sf

Runelapcler W  S7501

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

THIS PAGE IS PART OF THIS LEGAL DOCUMENT - DO NOT REMOVE.

This information must be completed by submitter: document title, name & return address, and PIN (if required). Other information such as

the granting clause, legal description, etc., may be placed on this first page of the document or may be placed on additional pages of the
document.

WRDA Rev. 12/22/2010




Agenda

CITY OF RHINELANDER

City Clerk’s Office Home of the Hodag

CERTIFICATE OF ANNEXATION

I, AUSTYN T ZARDA, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
ONEIDA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, do hereby certify that the attached described territory

was detached from the Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin pursuant to Section

66.0223, Wisconsin Statutes, as adopted by ordinance by the Rhinelander Common

Council on Monday, May 9th, 2022. I do hereby further certify that the area annexed

contains (0) in population and zero (0) alcoholic beverage license.

Org:

CC:

Dated this 28th Day of July 2022

Auctyn Jorcla  (Jyifpm Sedn
AustyrdT Z4fda, City Clerk

City of Rhinelander
Oneida County, Wisconsin

Secretary of State P\CKka G’d e (T\_

Register of Deeds, Oneida County, WI. persom&\ C Yr\e mfore
WPSC, Real Estate Agent, Green Bay, Wl/Local Office ‘l’h\g lj’ Cjﬂb O{_ 70( UST Z ZZ
Schoo! District of Rhinelander, Secretary, Rhinelander, WI. —\—h C\m\/e hme Wm

City Assessor/Town Assessor

Wisconsin Depart of Revenue, Excise Tax Bureau, Madison, WI. &Y Q T’O me EHOUU(\
Rhinelander Police Dept/Oneida County Sheriff's Dept Sm V\JHO

Rhinelander Fire Dept/County Fire Department @(@LMCJ "‘Y\e mre ol

Oneida County Land Information Office — Survey Flle

Eagle Waste Om€ O\ﬂd &C %dqe

Rhinelander Public Works Dept.

JENNA J|RIK
Notary Puplic

City Hall

o v
NLOANR T NCLE K

State of Wisconsin Telephone (715) 365-8600 ext #1

135 S. Stevens St. Fax (715) 365-8630

Rhinelander W| 54501

S\’@\\C OF \‘/(:\J \g&ﬂ é ] Q Email: azarda@rhinelandercityheﬂéorg ‘mg
0 \ . SHON €X
ooty 0 Ny Lo 0\!»01?’2 |



Agenda

City of Rhinelander - Ordinance 2022-5
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
WISCONSIN PURSUANT TO WISCONSIN STATUTE 66.0217
The Common Council of the City of Rhinelander does ordain as follows:

Territory Annexed: In accordance with Wis. Stats 66.0217 and upon recommendation of the City of
Rhinelander Planning Commission, annexation of the following property, more particularly described
below, located in the Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin, is annexed to the City of Rhinelander.

Description: PE-78-10 - A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across Government Lot 2
(the West half of the Northeast Quarter) of Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East of the Fourth
Principal Meridian, Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows:
Said strip of land being 50 feet in width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed)
of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway Company (now the Chicago and North Western
Transportation Company), as said main track center line was originally located and established over and
across said Section 8. EXCEPTING that part described in Document No. 624575, further described as
follows: All that part of Government Lot 2 of Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East, Town of
Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin, lying South of C&NW Railroad and East of Slaughterhouse Creek.
Also, that part of a 100 foot strip in width extending over and across said Government Lot 2, and being 50
feet in width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake
Shore and Western Railway Company, (now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company),
as said main track centerline was originally located and established over and across said Government Lot
2, lying East of Slaughterhouse Creek.

PE-80-G - A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across the (Southeast Quarter of the
Southwest Quarter) of Section 5, and the (Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter) of Section 8,
Township 36 North, Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, said strip of land being 50 feet in
width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and
Western Railway Company. EXCEPT V895 P845

(now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track center line was
originally located and established over and across said Sections 5 and 8.

PE-1250-3 — Lot 53 of the Assessors Plat in Government Lot 1 & 2, Section 8m Township 36 North,
Range 9 East, according to the recorded Plat thereof.

Effect of Annexation: For and after the date of this ordinance the territory described above shall be part of
the City of Rhinelander for any and all purposes provided by law and all persons coming or residing
within such territory shall be subject to ordinances, rules and regulations governing the City of
Rhinelander.

Zoning Classification: As recommended by the Planning Commission, the territory annexed to the City of
Rhinelander by this ordinance is designated as 1-2 (General Industrial) subject to the zoning restrictions
related to such zoning classification in the City of Rhinelander.

Severability: If any provision of this Ordinance is invalid or constitutional, or the application of this
ordinance to any person or circumstances is invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or



Agenda

unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions of applications of this ordinance, which can be
given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional provision of applications.

Effective Date: This Ordinance amendment shall become effective upon passage and publication.

This ordinance amendment was Xpassed_rejected by vote of the Rhinelander City Council 8 aye O
nays.

CERTIFICATE:

STATE OF WISCONSIN
COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, Austyn Zarda, City Clerk of the City of Rhinelander, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance

was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Rhinelander, held at City
Hall on the2Bday of May 2022 at 6:00 P.M.

AcKnowledgnen i e
perorallycameloefareme e

HsS |

j‘r\ OQ P‘ U§+ Q/O)/Z Oneida County, Wisconsin

) coove ncmN)C\ MSM”

2OV

Aa 10 me enowN o e e

D@%on WO exelsta +

F g

nsihhument @

O\LKY\D\N N samo

TPANTGNE e of wistonsiD
Jthna Ttk ooty of ondd

r

TN MY COMMISLI0N EXPIres

Notary Public

| swe of Wisconsic q/ lO(ZZ’




Agenda

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
The City of Rhinelander Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, April 5, at 5:00 P.M in
the Meeting Room, City Hall, 135 S. Stevens Street, Rhinelander, WI 54501 to hear the following request:

TA Solberg, Minocqua, W1 54548, owner of property located off Grossman Ave and Old Highway 8; parcels
PE-78-10, PE-80-G, PE-1250-3 is requesting an Annexation from the Town of Pelican to the City of
Rhinelander and a Map Amendment Rezone to I-2 (General Industrial) for the purpose of constructing a
trucking and warehouse facility.

The property descriptions are: PE-78-10 — A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across
Government Lot 2 (the West half of the Northeast Quarter) of Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East of
the Fourth Principal Meridian, Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as
follows: Said strip of land being 50 feet in width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed)
of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway Company (now the Chicago and North Western
Transportation Company), as said main track center line was originally located and established over and across
said Section 8. EXCEPTING that part described in Document No. 624575, further described as follows: All that
part of Government Lot 2 of Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East, Town of Pelican, Oneida County,
Wisconsin, lying South of C&NW Railroad and East of Slaughterhouse Creek. Also that part of a 100 foot strip
in width extending over and across said Government Lot 2, and being 50 feet in width on each side of the center
line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway Company, (now the
Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track centerline was originally located and
established over and across said Government Lot 2, lying East of Slaughterhouse Creek.

PE-80-G — A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest
Quarter of Section 5, and the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 8, Township 36 North,
Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, said strip of land being 50 feet in width on each side of the
center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway Company
(now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track center line was originally
located and established over and across said Sections 5 and 8.

PE-1250-3 — Lots 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, and 53 of the Assessor’s Plat in Government Lots in 1 and 2, Section 8,
Township 36 North, Range 9 East, according to the recorded Plat thereof. EXCEPT the North 18 feet of Lots 47

b

50, and 51.
Anyone opposed to or in favor of this request may appear at this hearing,
770 5055
readyy § Lo o RH91080228) Torosons
pen, i [ iPEATs 5 |—-. RH-9108-020%
PEAD? B ? g 1 —
i i PEaa Thetaany 3 RN.9108.0223
PR [ i RH-5108-0807 — ]
wh——f | PEans ] 4 3
wld i s fpeazn [ D s
-om peazss |1 P 1080201
X S‘.“{_ : o ee 1242 card RH-$108.0224
wn PrtRALLg) rtg' A7 Josolr fea i RH-9108-0227
sday . “p-“\“\ : 5078 PE1245
PE-1224 '. '. 50:61 ------- %"M:'l‘ l
pe1222 [ PE1220 RH.5108.0808 s sn gy K
H B H ez - N
S reaf pe.a21y || sar0 o, N . | Site of proposed
Yl W 5069 * - | Annexation
_ RI-9108 0801 | B PE-78-10
X | |'.
|
]




Agenda

PUBLISH LEGAL:
March 22" & March 29", 2022

Please send publication statement to:

TA Solberg
PO Box 50
Minocqua, WI 54548

Olivia Jopek
Assistant, Rhinelander Planning Commission



Agenda

PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS APPROVAL

TO: The Honorable Common Council of the City of Rhinelander

Austyn Zarda, City Clerk
135 S Stevens St
Rhinelander, Wisconsin 54501

TA Solberg ("Petitioner") hereby respectfully petitions the Common Council of the City of
Rhinelander pursuant to Section 66.0217 of the Wisconsin Statutes, for the direct annexation to the City
of Rhinelander, Rhinelander County, Wisconsin (the "City"), and the detachment from the Town of
Pelican (‘the "Town"), of the territory described below in Paragraph 6 (the "Territory"). In support of

this petition, the Petitioners allege and represent the following:
. The Petitioner is the sole owner of all the land within the Territory.
2. There are no electors who reside in the Territory.

3. The population of the Territory is zero (0).

4. The purpose of this petition for direct annexation of the Territory to the City is to obtain
the benefits to be derived from owning land located within the limits of the City, including, but not
limited to having access to municipal services. The Petitioners believe it to be in their own best

interests and the best interests of the surrounding area to have the Territory annexed to the City.

5. The Territory is contiguous to the City.

6. The Territory is Parcel No. PE-78-10 — A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over
and across Government Lot 2 (the West half of the Northeast Quarter) of Section 8, Township 36
North, Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin,
more particularly described as follows: Said strip of land being 50 feet in width on each side of the
center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway
Company (now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track center
line was originally located and established over and across said Section 8. EXCEPTING that part
described in Document No. 624575, further described as follows: All that part of Government Lot 2 of
Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East, Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin, lying South
of C&NW Railroad and East of Slaughterhouse Creek. Also, that part of a 100 foot strip in width
extending over and across said Government Lot 2, and being 50 feet in width on each side of the center
line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway Company,
(now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track centerline was
originally located and established over and across said Government Lot 2, lying East of Slaughterhouse
Creek.



Agenda

PE-80-G — A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across the Southeast Quarter of the
Southwest Quarter of Section 5, and the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 8,
Township 36 North, Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, said strip of land being 50 feet in
width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore
and Western Railway Company (now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as
said main track center line was originally located and established over and across said Sections 5 and 8.

PE-1250-3 — Lots 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, and 53 of the Assessor’s Plat in Government Lots in 1 and 2,
Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East, according to the recorded Plat thereof. EXCEPT the
North 18 feet of Lots 47, 50, and 51.

7. Attached to this Petition as Exhibit A is a scale map which depicts the boundaries of the
Territory.

7
Dated this 22 day of March 2022 J/W //ﬁ%ﬂ/

Trygve Solberg, T.A /Sol erg Co. Inc.




Agenda

Doc No: 830195

Recorded on

State Bar of Wisconsin Form 1-2003 1/25/2022 3:25 PM

WARRANTY DEED
KYLE J FRANSON
Document Number Document Name REGISTER OF DEEDS

ONEIDA COUNTY, Wi
THIS DEED, made between Fee Amount: $30.00

Michael H. Houle Transfer Fee: $79.50
Pages: 2

("Grantor,"” whether one or more), and

T.A. Solberg Co. Inc. This document has been electronicaily
("Grantee,” whether one or more). recorded

Grantor, for a valuable consideration, conveys to Grantee the following described
real estate, together with the rents, profits, fixtures and other appurtenant interests,
in Oneida County, State of Wisconsin ("Property”) (if more space is needed, please Recording Area
attach addendum):

See Attached Exhibit A Name and Return Address:
T.A. Solberg Co. Inc.

Vacant Land - Oid 8 Rd
Rhinelander, W1 54501
PE-78-10
Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

This is not homestead property.

Grantor warrants that the title to the Property is good, indefeasible in fee simple and free and clear of encumbrances except: municipal
and zoning ordinances and agreements entered under them, recorded easements for the distribution of utility and municipal services,
recorded building and use restrictions and covenants, present uses of the Property in violation of the foregoing disclosed in the
Grantor's (Seller's) Real Estate Condition Report, if any, and in the Offer to Purchase for the Property between the Grantor and
Grantee, if any, and general taxes levled In the year of closing and will warrant and defend the same. )

Dated: 24h day of January, 2022

AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Signature(s): Michael H. Houle authenticated on STATE OF WISCONSIN
COUNTY OF ONEIDA

The instrument was acknowledged before me on this
24th day of January, 2022, by Michael H. Houle (the

TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN signer).
{If not, The signer was:
authorized by Wis. Stat. § 706.06) K,physically in my presence OR
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: — in my presence involving the use of communication
Pat Hugunin Scrivener / 2119132 \\\\““?‘:\,LE 4"4»”1/,,,/ technology
Knight Barry Title Services LLC \\\\\\OY\ """ e d‘/,//// N -
125 E. Davenport Street S \0TAp, “E2 otary Public: . :
Rhinelander, W/ 54501 5= WOIARYL " 3%  Notary Public Reiféd Name:

! S | e~a.yg ! = NotaryPublic, Stafe of Wisconsin (I ¢, J/(g ;

Ea (2\ pUBL\G > ss My commission (is permanent)(expires:
X SO ///ﬂ 7/ 9042
Y OF 15CO

W
W

(Signatures may be authenticated or acknowledged. Both ara not necessary.)
NOTE: THIS IS A STANDARD FORM. ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THIS FORM SHOULD BE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED.
WARRANTY DEED © 2003 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM NO. 1-2003
“Type name below signatures



Agenda

EXHIBIT "A"

A strip of land 100 feet in width extending over and across Government Lot 2 (the West half of the Northeast Quarter) of
Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin,
more particularly described as follows:

Said strip of land being 50 feet in width on each side of the center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee,
Lake Shore and Western Railway Company (now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main
track center line was originally located and established over and across said Section 8.

EXCEPTING that part described in Document No. 624575, further described as follows:
All that part of Government Lot 2 of Section 8, Township 36 North, Range 9 East, Town of Pefican, Oneida County,
Wisconsin, lying South of C&NW Railroad and East of Slaughterhouse Creek.

Also that part of a 100 foot strip in width extending over and across said Government Lot 2, and being 50 feet in width on
each side of the center line of the main track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and Western Railway
Company, (now the Chicago and North Western Transportation Company), as said main track centerline was originally
located and established over and across said Government Lot 2, lying East of Slaughterhouse Creek.

(Signatures may be authenticated or acknowledged. Both are not necessary.)
NOTE: THIS IS A STANDARD FORM. ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THIS FORM SHOULD BE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED.
WARRANTY DEED @ 2003 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM NO. 1-2003
*Type name helow signatures



Agenda

%?fg.mh u. 108

@Qﬁvnumu.:%r‘ﬁ /\ ' Resolution dated
Do o Fuabee é Dire 30 THL

0 85 \ \\/) I’VOL /5?20 :;g § 338884 U% j,))-f

Authorization No. _June 2

DEED NO._84281

THE GRANTOR. CHICAGO AND NORTH WESTERN TRANSPORTATION
COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, whose principal office is located at
165 North Canal Street, Chicago, Il1linois, for the consideration of
NINE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($9,600.00), convey&hand
guitclaims to T, A, SOLBERG CO., INC., a Wisconsin corporation, whose
principal office is located at 70 West Center, Minocqua, Wisconsin
54548, GRANTEE, all interest in the following described real estate
situated in the County of Oneida, and the State of Wisconsin, to wit:

RTQISTER OF DLEDR

eet in w ne of the main
FEE track (now removed) of the Milwaukee, Lake Shore and
Western Railway Company (now the Chicago and North Western
Transportation Company{, as said main track center line was
originally located and established over and across said
Sections 5 and 8,

Subject to all public roads and highways located on the above
described real estate.

Subject to the right of the Grantor, 1its successors and
assigns, to have until September 30, 1985 to enter upon said real
estate for the purpose of removing any and all tracks and bridge
materials, facilities and appurtenances thereto from sald real estate
and from adjoining real estate. If not ramoved within said perioad,
they shall be deemed abandoned by Grantor without obligation on

Grantor's part and shall thereafter be and become Grantee's property in

place.

(// Excepting and Reserving, however, unto the Grantor, its les-

sees, licensees, successors and assigns, the right to continue to pro-

°, tect, maintain, operate, and use any and all existing drainage, drive-
i ways, conduits, sewers, water mains, gas lines, electric power 1i1ines,

. communication 1lines, wires and other utilities, and easements of any.

% kind whatsoever on said premises, including the repair, reconstruction
and replacement thereof.

By the acceptance of this conveyance, Grantee, for itself,
'1ts'successors and assigns, agrees to take all steps necessary, at no
expense to Grantor, to comply with any and all governmental require-
ments relating to land platting and use.‘.:

This conveyance is made upon the express condition that the
Grantor will not pay any taxes or special assessments which may be due
or delinquent upon the real estate hereinabove described.

Page 1 of 2 Pages



Agenda

DEED NO. 84281

: Resolution dated
Authorization No. une Y

Grantor certifies that the subject property may and shall, if
released from the lien of the Indenture of'Mortgage and Deed of Trust,
originally executed by Chicago and North Western Railway Company and
The First National Bank of Chicago, Trustee, dated as of January 1,
1939, as supplemented and amended, be automatically released from the
liens of the Mortgage Indenture and -Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases
and Rents, Security Agreement and Financing Statements A and B dated as
of June 29, 1983 by G&rantor and Midwestern Ra{1road Properties,
Incorporated to Continental Il1linofs National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago and The First Natfonal Bank of Chicago, as Co-Agents, pursuant

to clause (a) of Section 4.3 thereof.

DATED this 18th __ day of Janyary , 19_85. .
Signed, Sealed and Delivered in CHICAGO AND NORTH WESTERN
Presence of: TRANSPORTATION COMPANY-
N , : el
\/Xﬂlf . %\"-A\/UJ;\’G’M By actrindl v

;! Robert W. Mickey VIce P AsT
oprTda loa] ?/ 7 Attest %) il

B ;7oL ., I
4/ Leslie A.Cleveland, Asst. Secretary
STATE OF ILLINOIS) .

COUNTY OF C 0 0 X

4.,

SS

1, Richard S. Kennerley ., a Notary Public duly commissioned and
qualified in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY
that__Robert W. Mickey and_Leslie A. Cleveland , to me personally known
and known to me to be, respectively, --- Vice President
and Assistant Secretary of CHTCAGO AND NORTR WESTERN TRANSPOR-
TATION CORPARY, 2 Delaware corporation, and the identical persons whose
names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me
this day 1in person, and being first duly sworn by me, severally acknow-
ledged to me that they are, respectively, | mee- . Vice
President and Assistant Secretary of said corporation;

_that as such officers they signed, seatled and delivered said instrument

in behalf of said corporation by authority and order of its Board of
Directors, as the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation,
and as their own free and voluntary act; that the seal affixed to said
instrument is the seal of said corporation; and that said corporation
executed said instrument for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ! have hereunto set my hand and affixed my

official seal as such Notary Public, at Chicago, I11{nofs, this 18th

of Jdanuary » 1985,

My Commission Expires: November 8, 1988

This instrument was prepared by Chicago and North Western T%ﬁnsporta-
tion Company, 165 North Canal Street, Chicago, Illinois 60606,

L-35-20
' o 922 wx S8

Paas ? of 2 Paaec




Agenda

343280

AN

3 ggllubfx. Perenich. and Neita F.. -Paranich,

P

DLUME"‘T NO. , WARRANTY DEED -
\ STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM 2— 1053

THIS SPACK AXWARVED FOR ACCORDING DATA

ONEIDA comnng' -

 the following described real estate In Oneida _ Connty,

RETURAN TO

State of Wisconsin:

YLE 3tio
to. the ‘recorded Plat thereo .

EXCEPT t__he_North‘_J_S. foat of Lots 47, 50, and 51.

on pages 765 and 766, Oneida County Recorda,

This .14.nat............ homestead property. -
{is) (i3 not)

Exception to warranties;

Dated this .....__.. 27th, eser day of oo, August

This deed is in fulfillment of that certain land comtract between ‘
parties hereto dated August 13, 1981, recorded in Vol. L74/Records,

TRANSFER g
—c(‘ 090 .

FEE i

.10.85.

f:/) A Y .,"/ iy S s
........................... ..{SEAL) R O I g v’-z—"‘%‘;\.(smm

S e v et e oo e s et ee oo e ee +..Gollub N. Perenich
AP - O
........... (SEAL) el st A e e At T i e ’<::’.l,.ﬂ(smm
. |
. ..Nelta Ra. Perenich. . . :
i
"AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT :
Signature(s) STATE OF WISCONSIN :
: 4.
Forest. County.
authentieated this ._._...day ofe.e....... ... 19 Personally came before me this ....27..... .day of
Avgust o 19 the above named
Gollub N. Perenich and Neita F.

. ' Perenich, his wife '

TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN

(Inot, ..............

own to be the p d

! g instrument and Ach owltdn tho umc
' THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY J

GRliuk. N Rexenich s_...Barbara é Nelgog ( e
.................. o ﬁ.., ogen
- Nof.nry Publte ..foreah Y " 0 S :...County, Wis. B
(Signatures miy be authenticated or ldmovlldnd Both My Commission ; bl’"’""‘""“",.“"‘n stata expiration ]
. are not necessary.) ....-Q . date: ... 3-9-860 EETIENWA NI 19 )
vou 930 mee 128 ‘ T

*Names of perevns slgning in sny capssity shoald be yped or printed below their stguutures.




Agenda

Document Copy

jhoulihan@houlihanlaw.net
To Oneida Titie

From: jhoulihan@houlihanlaw.net <jhoulihan@houlihanlaw.net>
To: Oneida Title <oneidati@newnorth.net>
Time: Thursday, March 10, 2022 (Thu) 15:44
Size: 53 KB

Thank you!

Cheri Biedermann

Legal Assistant to John C. Houlihan
Houlihan Law Firm, S.C.

P.O. Box 630

Minocqua, WI 54548

716-356-1422

715-356-1446 (fax)
jhoulihan@houlihanlaw.net or

chiedermann@houlihanlaw.net

Please provide a copy of Document No. 343280 (Town of Pelican).

2022-03-10 15:44 Hide Detail

This message originates from the law firm of Houlihan Law Firm, S.C. The information transmitted in this e-mail and any attachment
is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the intended recipients. This mnessage may be or may contain privileged and
confidential attorney-client communications. If you as the reader are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have
received this communication in error and that any retention, review, use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication or
the information contained is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify sender immediately and
delete the original message from your system. You are further notified that all personal messages express views solely of the sender,
which are not to be attributed to the law firm of Houlihan Law Firm, S.C., and may not be copied or distributed without this disclaimer.




Agenda

OCO~NOOITRWNEF

RESOLUTION #

Resolution to Approve Alteration of Supervisory District Boundary Resulting from an
Annexation to the City of Rhinelander

Resolution approved for presentation to the Oneida County Board by the Supervisors of the
Executive Committee

Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Oneida County Board of Supervisors adopted a ten-year
Supervisory District Plan creating County Supervisory Districts, Municipal Alderman Districts and
Election Wards following the 2020 Census; and

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. 859.10(3)(c) allows a county board, in its discretion, to alter the
boundaries of supervisory districts based on annexations that occur after the adoption of the ten-
year supervisory district plan, as long as the number of supervisory districts does not change; and

WHEREAS, the City of Rhinelander completed an annexation of parcel number RH-9333-
0701, RH-9333-0702, RH-9333-0703, RH-9333-0704, RH-9333-0705, RH-9333-0707 and RH-
9333-0708 on 08/15/2022, of seven parcels of approximately 14.01 acres total; and

WHEREAS, a map of the annexed parcels, along with a copy of the annexation ordinance,
has been filed with the Oneida County Clerk and is attached; and

WHEREAS, the parcels annexed by the City of Rhinelander are a part of County
Supervisory District 08 within Ward 03 in the Town of Pine Lake; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to move the annexed parcel into County Supervisory District
05 in the City of Rhinelander and alter the two affected District boundaries accordingly; and

WHEREAS, the population of the annexed parcels is zero (0) residents, which
substantially maintains the original populations of the affected districts; and

WHEREAS, this resolution does not change the number of supervisory districts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Board of Supervisors in
session this 12" day of November, 2025, that the boundaries of Supervisory Districts 05 and 08
are hereby altered by moving the annexed parcels of land attached hereto from County
Supervisory District 08 to County Supervisory District 05 and within Ward 02 in the City of
Rhinelander, as shown on the attached document.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Oneida County Clerk is hereby directed to
forward all notices required under Chapter 59 of the Wisconsin Statutes to the Secretary of
State for the purpose of advising that office of said Supervisory District boundary changes.

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority = 3/4 Majority =

The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes No as reviewed




Agenda

51 by the Corporation Counsel, , Date:

52

53

54 Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5" day of
55 November, 2025.

56

57 Consent Agenda Item: YES NO

58

59

60

g% Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:
63 Included in Aye  Nay Abstain
64 Resolution
65 L L) L
gg I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried

L L

68 | | wna

69 Supervisor Scott Holewinski
70

71 L] L L
;% Supervisor Diana Harris

74 (1 1 [
75 Supervisor Connor Showalter

76
77 il
78 Supervisor Robb Jensen

79
80 il
81 Supervisor Steven Schreier

82
83 i
84 Supervisor Russ Fisher

85

86

87 Ayes

88

89 Nays

90

91 Absent

92

93 Abstain

94

95 Adopted

96

gg by the County Board of Supervisors this 12th day of November, 2025.

99 Defeated

100




Agenda

101
102
103
104

Tracy Hartman, County Clerk

Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair



Agenda

243, 7]

T ‘—-.~_J
170,007

1325
CSvre212
PL-641-2

197,64

202,96

203. 08

215.08

CSM 5742

o3 { O ETRANG Y Bloed1-7
S L i N i -\ - i
8 CSM 5744 T @SMS‘%@N v ) TN
RH-9333-0701 1 R ORI . < e
1933 _g
: \ 182,51 2 5 i
_/ T — Na"\l"ajosf 192,85+
’ Russ Fishzi;;
715-360-3998
CSM 5742 V CSM 57370933 ,
RH-9333-0709 RH-9333-0710 Ez N i
370932 5 | cSM5740
R 3 z o | RH-9333-0707
™M
155.48"° c'\
CSM 5277 i E S
\ =1 RH-9333-0704 .
1958 " CSM 5740 ¢

RH-$.2720703

Tres T

N
£ I

i o
i K o
-1 co
3 Q
1 & 2
al ! Iaa)
| BN
' 2.
_.i' o
: A
)
|2
= CSM s4@8 |
i Q Greg Oetfinger,
= 715-3600010
O]
i RH-9333-0810
T

. COM 3461

RH-9333-0811

Oneida County GIS Map

Oneida County, Wisconsin

This map is courtesy of the Oneida County Land Information
office and is a general sketch of areas in Oneida County. It
should not be used to represent surveys of property.



schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Highlight

schiamulera
Line


Agenda

DOC# 836413

Recorded on
A AN ex ation Aug 15, 2022 02:14 PM

Document Number Document Title /% K
N = = ELY Ve

KYLE J FRANSON
REGISTER OF DEEDS
ONEIDA COUNTY, Wi

Fee Amount: $30.00
Pages: 8

Recording Area

Name and Return Address

Rinclancler City Hald
135 S Stevas &

Q\,\;M‘MU‘ WI SYso)

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

THIS PAGE IS PART OF THIS LEGAL DOCUMENT - DO NOT REMOVE.

This information must be completed by submitter: document title, name & return address, and PIN (if required). Other information such as

the granting clause, legal description, etc., may be placed on this first page of the document or may be placed on additional pages of the
document.

WRDA Rev. 12/22/2010




Agenda

CITY OF RHINELANDER

City Clerk's Office Home of the Hodag

CERTIFICATE OF ANNEXATION

I, AUSTYN T ZARDA, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
ONEIDA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, do hereby certify that the attached described territory
was detached from the Town of Pelican, Oneida County, Wisconsin pursuant to Section
66.0223, Wisconsin Statutes, as adopted by ordinance by the Rhinelander Common
Council on Monday, March 28th, 2022. I do hereby further certify that the area annexed

contains (0) in population and zero (0) alcoholic beverage license.

Dated this 22nd Day of April 2022

Austyn Jua _ (Lfpm Tuze

Austyr?T Zarda, City Clerk Ido A -
City of Rhinelander 8 2-3a
Oneida County, Wisconsin
Org:  Secretary of State Nnall
Register of Deeds, Oneida County, WI. C/akrjhse ‘%Cr\gd% é>$ VSO L}
cc: WPSC, Real Estate Agent, Green Bay, Wl/Local Office &fh L,L USf 2
School District of Rhinelander, Secretary, Rhinelander, WI. V\/ OQX

Rhinelander Police Dept/Oneida County Sheriff's Dept
Rhinelander Fire Dept/County Fire Department

City Assessor/Town Assessor
Wisconsin Depart of Revenue, Excise Tax Bureau, Madison, WI ag(ﬂawledge ’rh@

Oneida County Land Information Office — Survey Files &) O\«KK

Eagle Waste

Rhinelander Public Works Dept. v r\r\a d——l, A )/\

\(
otafy v v+

City Hall N £ \Wis cO\"‘~"‘n Telephone (715) 365-8600 ext #1
135 S. Stevens St. gtate O Fax (715) 365-8630
Rhinelander WI 54501 Email: azarda@rhinelandercityhall.org

MY COMMISSION) Stafe of WisdnsinN
XQIres epkr 0y Copnny of Oneida



Agenda

City of Rhinelander - Ordinance 2022-09

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF RHINELANDER,
WISCONSIN PURSUANT TO WISCONSIN STATUTE 66.0217

The Common Council of the City of Rhinelander does ordain as follows:

Territory Annexed: In accordance with Wis. Stats 66.0217 and upon recommendation of the City of Rhinelander
Planning Commission, annexation of the following property, more particularly described below, located in the
Town of Pine Lake, Oneida County, Wisconsin, is annexed to the City of Rhinelander.

Description: The property description is: Parcel 1: The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 33, Township 37 North,
Range 9 East. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 163 Deeds, Page 293. EXCEPT that part described in
Volume 181 Deeds, Page 65 and recorded in Volume 189 Deeds, Page 531. EXCEPT that part described in
Volume 163 Deeds, Page 425. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 282 Deeds, Page 397. EXCEPT that part
described in Volume 429 Deeds, Page 294. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 456 Deeds, Page 546.
EXCEPT that part described in Volume 460 Deeds, Page 401. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 932 Deeds,
Page 441-442. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 976 Records, Page 101 which was corrected in Document
No. 623047. EXCEPT those portions described in Document Nos. 522160, 700236 which was corrected in
Document No. 735646. ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT that part described as Certified Survey Map recorded in Vol.
19 of Survey Maps on page 4212. Parcel 2: Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map prepared by William Bandow, surveyor
of part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 33, Township 37 North, Range 9 East recorded on June 1, 2001 in
Vol. 1 O of Survey Maps on page 2531 & 2531-A. Being in Oneida County, Wisconsin.

Effect of Annexation: For and after the date of this ordinance the territory described above shall be part of the City
of Rhinelander for any and all purposes provided by law and all persons coming or residing within such territory
shall be subject to ordinances, rules and regulations governing the City of Rhinelander.

Zoning Classification: As recommended by the Planning Commission, the territory annexed to the City of
Rhinelander by this ordinance is designated as B-3 (General Business) subject to the zoning restrictions related to
such zoning classification in the City of Rhinelander.

Severability: If any provision of this Ordinance is invalid or constitutional, or the application of this ordinance to
any person or circumstances is invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the
other provisions of applications of this ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional
provision of applications.

Effective Date: This Ordinance amendment shall become effective upon passage and publication. This ordinance
amendment was X passed __rejected by vote of the Rhinelander City Council 8 ayes 0 nays.

CERTIFICATE
STATE OF WISCONSIN )

) ss.
COUNTY OF ONEIDA )

I, Austyn Zarda, City Clerk of the City of Rhinelander, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance
was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Rhinelander, held at City Hall
on the 27th day of June 2022 at 6:00 P.M.

ly came before methis

1\>§1(50m x%%ﬁ 2022 e al\ao\/e ety Jarde (Dl

M(X\GC\ PV\B ?O.YCK\ 10 ﬁE KY\OW Austy¥/Zarffa, City Clerk S{(\ I/]
m \Nm QX@LU V&j City of Rhinelander +C Of N lSCO ‘

m(ﬁgo\%'nsm]rmm . C\CKHO €d Oneida County, Wisconsin CounN \)\ of Oﬂﬂ\

. S
N O naTink. M s>




Agenda

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The City of Rhinelander Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, June 21,
2022, at 5:00 P.M in the Meeting Room, City Hall, 135 S. Stevens Street, Rhinelander, W1 54501 to

hear the following request:

T&H Holdings LLC, 586 Shepard Street, Suite B, Rhinelander, WI 54501, owner of property located at
1205 Chippewa Drive, Rhinelander (PL-641) is requesting an Annexation from the Town of Pine Lake
to the City of Rhinelander for PL-641 and Map Amendment Rezone to B- 3 (General Business) zoning

for the purpose of commercial development.

The property description is: Parcel 1: The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 33, Township 37 North,
Range 9 East. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 163 Deeds, Page 293. EXCEPT that part
described in Volume 181 Deeds, Page 65 and recorded in Volume 189 Deeds, Page 531. EXCEPT that
part described in Volume 163 Deeds, Page 425. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 282 Deeds,
Page 397. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 429 Deeds, Page 294. EXCEPT that part described
in Volume 456 Deeds, Page 546. EXCEPT that part described in Volume 460 Deeds, Page 401.
EXCEPT that part described in Volume 932 Deeds, Page 441-442. EXCEPT that part described in
Volume 976 Records, Page 101 which was corrected in Document No. 623047. EXCEPT those
portions described in Document Nos. 522160, 700236 which was corrected in Document No. 735646.
ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT that part described as Certified Survey Map recorded in Vol. 19 of
Survey Maps on page 4212. Parcel 2: Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map prepared by William Bandow,
surveyor of part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 33, Township 37 North, Range 9 East recorded
on June 1, 2001 in Vol. 1 O of Survey Maps on page 2531 & 2531-A. Being in Oneida County,

Wisconsin.

23V
MLy

RH-9333.0625

A

[ RH.9332-0408

RH-9332-0409

RH-9332-0407

.\\

RH-9333-0701

RH-9332-11301t

PLsos1s

——
06

FRl B
RH-9333.0g

RH-9333-0807

RH-9333.08}9

RH-9333.087,
RH-9333.051

RH-9333-0813

——
TG

RH-9333-1000

RH-9333.1207

RH-9333.¢

002‘.
S,

Olivia Jopek
Assistant, Rhinelander Planning Commission



Agenda

PUBLISH LEGAL:

June 13" & June 17, 2022

Please send publication statement to:
T&H Holdings LLC
586 Shepard Street, Suite B
Rhinelander, WI 54501



Agenda

PETITION FOR DIRECT ANNEXATION BY UNANIMOUS APPROVAL

TO: The Honorable Conunon Council of the City of Rhinelander

Austyn Zarda, City Clerk

135 S Sievens St

Rhinelander, Wisconsin 34501

T&H Heoldings, LLC ("Petitioner”) hereby respectfully petitions the Common Council
of the City of Rhinelander pussuant 1o Section 66.0217 of the Wisconsin Statutes. for the direct
annexation to the City of Rhinelander, Rhinclander County, Wisconsin (the "City™), and the
detachment from the Town of Pine Lake {the "Town"), of the terrtory described below in
Paragraph 6 {the "Terriiory"). In support of this petitton. the Pettioners allege and represent

the following:

I The Petitioner is the sole owner of all the land within the Territory.

% There are no electors who reside in the Territory.

3. The population of the Terruory is zero ().

4. The purpose of this petition for dircet annexation of the Territory wo the City is

ta obtain the benefits to be derived from owning land located within the limis of the City,
mcluding, but not limuted to having access o municipal services. The Petitioners believe it to
be in thetr own best interests and the best interesis of the sumounding area to have the

Territory annexed to the City.
A. The Terrmory is contiguous io the Chy.

b. The address of ihe Territary i1s Parcel No. PL « 641 Town of Pine Lake,
Wisconsin. The legal description of the Tervitory is as set forth on aitached Exhibit A. The
Terntory contains approxinately 14.01 acres.

7. Attached to this Petition as Exhibit A 1s a scale map which depicts the

boundaries of the Terriiory.

Dated this 11 day of March, 2022 Mf 0 E

Tim I* Thorsen Managing Partner,
T & H Holdings, LLC




Agenda |

S

DOCUMENT NO. o STATE BAR OF WISCONSI_N FORM 2 i DOC# 831 443
‘ WARR§NTY DEED ' Recorded on

: Mar 3, 2022 03:19 PM
Peggy J. Feight as to Parcel 1 and Peggy Feight as to Parcel 2

conveys and warrants to : 4 . 5 ;V‘ ( -

T&H Holdings, LLC KYLE J FRANSON
. REGISTER OF DEEDS
the following descnbed real estate in ONEIDA County, State of Wisconsin: : ONEIDA COUNTY, Wi
Fee Amount: $30.00
Transfer Fee: $1,875.00

SEE A’ITACHED EXHIBIT A"

Pages: 2 .
.RE’I'URN TO —
_'Onelda Tltle & Abstract Inc
“P.O. Box 98

: ‘Rhinelander, WI 54501

AL 641, RH 4333 'o7o|
Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

This is not homestead property.
(is)(is not)

Together with all and singular the hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging; and GRANTOR warrants that the title is good, indefeasible in fee
simple and free and clear of encumbrances and will warrant and defend the same, except: subject to municipal and zoning ordinances and agreements entered under
them, recorded easements for the distribution of utility and municipal services, recorded building and use restrictions and covenants and all other

easements, restrictions, reservations and rights of way of record. and holding tank agreement of record.

Dated this 1st day of March, 2022, - ]
, J .
. : ‘Peggy J. Feig

AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Signatures authenticated this day of ,20__ STATE OF WISCONSIN } .
COUNTY OF ONEIDA

*

'I‘I'(I;E: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN Personally came before me this 1st day of March, 2022, the above
not,

_ : named Peggy J. Feight to me known to be the person(s) who executed
authorized by § 706.06, Wis. Stats.) the foregoing instrument and acknowledge the same.

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY P/(-Q) M,Q) Y\Q)VQK/

Houlihan Law Office by Attorney John Houlihan * Promise Novak

Notary Public, Oneida County Wisconsin
for Oneida Title & Abstract, Inc. (per description furnished) 4 4 !

(Signatures may be authenticated or acknowledged. Both are not necessary.) My Commission expires; _June 4, 2023
*Names of persons signing in any capacity should be typed or printed below their signatures.

““ulllll“"“

o \S NO "/,
R \4\ qu‘f‘

Femm
i o e

T D
WARRANTY DEED



Agenda

Exhibit "A"

Parcel 1:

The SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4, Section 33, Township 37 North, Range 9 East.

" EXCEPT that part described in Volume 163 Deeds, Page 293.

531.

EXCEPT that part descnbed in Vo|ume 181 Deeds Page 65 and recorded in Volume 189 Deeds Page

EXCEPT that part descrlbed in Vqume 163 Deeds Page 425.
EXCEPT that part. described in Volume 282 Deeds, Page 397.

_EXCEPT that part described in Volume 429 Deeds, Page 294.
EXCEPT that part descrlbed in Volume 456 Deeds, Page 546.
"EXCEPT that part descrrbed in Vo|ume 460 Deeds, Page 401.

EXCEPT that part described in Volume 932 Deeds, Page 441-442. :
EXCEPT that part descnbed in Volume 976 Records Page 101 whrch was corrected in Document No.

623047.
EXCEPT those portrons descrlbed in Document Nos 522160 700236 whrch was corrected in Document

No. 735646. :
ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT that part described as Certified Survey Map recorded in Vol. 19 of Survey

Maps on page 4212.
Parcel 2:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map prepared by William Bandow, surveyor of part of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4,
Section 33, Township 37 North, Range 9 East recorded on June 1, 2001 in Vol. 10 of Survey Maps on
page 2531 & 2531-A.

Being in Oneida County, Wisconsin.



Agenda

NRRRRRRRRR
COONOUTRWNROOONOURAWNEF

NNNININN
[e2X SNV N \O ]

WWWWWWNININ
OIRWNEF,POWOVOO~N

OB BRI OLOWWLWW
QOOONOUT ~ARWNPFPOOOO~N®

RESOLUTION #

Resolution to deny the Notice of Circumstances of Claim filed by Consolidated Management
Company d/b/a Consolidated Correctional Foodservice.

Resolution offered by the Executive Committee.
Resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Oneida County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, a Notice of Circumstances of Claim was served on September 23, 2025 by
Consolidated Management Company d/b/a Consolidated Correctional Foodservice in the Oneida
County Clerk's Office; and

WHEREAS, said Notice of Claim alleges that Consolidated Management Company
sustained damages and alleges that said damages were caused by Oneida County and
employees of Oneida County; and

WHEREAS, the Notice of Circumstances of Claim have been referred to outside counsel
which has determined the claim should be denied; and

WHEREAS, after a review of this matter by the Corporation Counsel's Office, said office
recommends that the claim be denied.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Oneida County Board of Supervisors that
the claim submitted by Consolidated Management Company be and the same is hereby denied
and notice is hereby given that no action on this claim may be brought against Oneida County or
any of its officers, officials, agents or employees after six months from the date of service of this
notice; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be forwarded by the County
Clerk to the claimant by certified mail, return receipt requested, and/or by personal service if
deemed necessary, as a notice of disallowance.

Vote Required: Majority = 2/3 Majority = ¥, Majority =
The County Board has the legal authority to adopt: Yes No as reviewed by
the Corporation Counsel, , Date:

Approved for presentation to the County Board by the Executive Committee this 5"
day of November, 2025.

Consent Agenda Item: YES X___NO
Fiscal Impact Offered and passage moved by:
Included in Aye Nay Abstain
Resolution | | | | | |
I:I Attached Supervisor Billy Fried



Agenda

51
L]

52 [ ] wa

53 Supervisor Scott Holewinski

54
55 L]

56 Supervisor Robb Jensen

28 1

59 Supervisor Diana Harris

60
61 L]

62 Supervisor Steven Schreier

63
64 L]

65 Supervisor Russ Fisher

66
67 i

gg Supervisor Connor Showalter
70

71

72 Ayes

73

74 Nays

75

76 Absent

77

78 Abstain

79

80 Adopted

81

g% by the County Board of Supervisors this 12" day November, 2025.
84 Defeated

85

86

87

88 Tracy Hartman, County Clerk Scott Holewinski, County Board Chair
89

90



	11-5-2025 Agenda - Extra Spacing.pdf
	Notice of Posting   Time 4:30 p.m.  Date: 10/31/2025 Place:  Courthouse Bulletin Board

	10-6-2025 Draft Minutes.pdf
	10-7-2025 draft minutes.pdf
	10-8-2025 draft minutes.pdf
	10-22-2025  Draft Minutes.pdf
	RESOLUTION TO UPDATE 1.13 CO TR 1.27 AUDITOR FD 1.38 INVEST POL 3.03 LGPIF 3.12 FN POL.V2.pdf
	§ 1.13. County Treasurer.
	§ 1.27. Auditor/Finance Director.
	§ 1.38. Investment Policy.
	§ 3.03. Local Government Pooled Investment Fund. Reserved
	§ 3.12. Financial Policies and Procedures.

	RESOLUTION TO UPDATE 3.18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE.V2.pdf
	§ 3.18. Accounts Receivable Policies.

	Fund Balance Control Narrative_ as of 12.31.2025.pdf
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Crescent to Rhinelander Final.pdf
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Crescent to Rhinelander
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Crescent to Rhinelander Map
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Crescent to Rhinelander 2022-06 Doc 836414

	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pelican to Rhinelander - Final.pdf
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pelican to Rhinelander.pdf
	2022-05 Resolution Map.pdf
	2022-05 Doc 836412.pdf

	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pine Lake to Rhinelander - Final.pdf
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pine Lake to Rhinelander
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pine Lake to Rhinelander Map
	Resolution to amend County Board Supervisor Lines - Pine Lake to Rhinelander 2022-09 Doc 836413

	Resolution to disallow the claim.pdf

	Agenda: 


